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EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET AL. vs.  
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON 

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.                   .                    
PETITIONERS' APPENDIX  

CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

DATE DOCUMENT TITLE VOL BATES 
NOS. 

2017-11-30 Notice of Attorney's Lien I P000001 – 
P000005 

2018-01-02 Notice of Amended Attorney's Lien I P000006 – 
P000010 

 UNUSED BATES NUMBERS I P000011 – 
P000028 

2018-12-13 Plaintiffs' Motion for an Order 
Directing Simon to Release Plaintiffs' 
Funds 

I P000029-
P000070 

2019-01-11 Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion for 
Release of Funds 

I P000071-
P000089 

2019-01-28 Plaintiffs' Reply to Opposition to 
Plaintiffs' Motion for Release of Funds 

I P000090-
P000123 

2019-02-05  Court Minutes – Minute Order Re: 
Motion to Release Funds 

I P000124 

2021-04-13 Excerpts of Opposition to Mot. to 
Reconsider  

I P000124A-
P000124E 

2021-04-13 Nevada Supreme Court Clerk's 
Certificate Judgment Affirmed  

I P000125-
P000141 

2021-05-03 Plaintiffs' Renewed Motion for 
Reconsideration of Third-Amended 
Decision and Order Granting in Part 
and Denying in Part Simon's Motion  
for Attorney's Fees and Costs, and 
Motion for Reconsideration of Third 
Amended Decision and Order on 
Motion to Adjudicate Lien 

I/II P000142-
P000247 
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EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET AL. vs.  
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON 

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.                   .                    
PETITIONERS' APPENDIX  

CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

DATE DOCUMENT TITLE VOL BATES 
NOS. 

2021-05-13 Edgeworths' Motion for Order 
Releasing Client Funds and Requiring 
the Production of Complete Client File 

II P000248-
P000322 

2021-05-20 Opposition to Edgeworths' Motion for 
Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring Production of File 

II P000323-
P000371 

2021-05-21 Edgeworths' Reply in Support of 
Motion for Order Releasing Client 
Funds and Requiring the Production 
of Complete Client File 

II P000372-
P000391 

2021-05-26 Letter Re: Funds Transfers II P000392-
P000393 

2021-05-27 Recorder's Transcript of Pending 
Motions  

II P000394-
P000422 

2021-06-03 Court Minutes – Minute Order Re: 
Motions for Reconsideration and for 
Release of Funds 

III P000423-
P000424 

2021-06-18 Notice of Entry of Decision and Order 
Denying Edgeworth's Motion for 
Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring Production of Complete 
File 

III P000425-
P000432 

2021-07-01 Edgeworth's Motion for 
Reconsideration of Order on Motion 
for Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring the Production of Complete 
Client File And Motion to Stay 
Execution of Judgments Pending 
Appeal 

III P000433-
P000446 
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EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET AL. vs.  
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON 

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.                   .                    
PETITIONERS' APPENDIX  

CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

DATE DOCUMENT TITLE VOL BATES 
NOS. 

2021-07-15 Opposition to the Third Motion to 
Reconsider 

III P000447-
P000489 

2021-07-17 Edgeworth's Reply in Support of 
Motion for Reconsideration of Order 
on Motion for Order Releasing Client 
Funds and Requiring the Production 
of Complete Client File And Motion to 
Stay Execution of Judgments Pending 
Appeal 

III/IV P000490-
P000705 

2021-09-14 Notice of Entry of Decision and Order 
Denying Edgeworths' Motion for 
Reconsideration of Order on Motion 
for Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring the Production of Complete 
Client File and Motion to Stay 
Execution of Judgments Pending 
Appeal 

IV P000706-
P000714 

2021-12-13 Order Consolidating and Partially 
Dismissing Appeals (Filed in Supreme 
Court Case No: 83258) 

IV P000715-
P000719 
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EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET AL. vs.  
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON 

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.                 . 
PETITIONERS' APPENDIX  

 
ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

 
DATE DOCUMENT TITLE VOL. BATES 

NOS. 
2019-02-05  Court Minutes – Minute Order Re: 

Motion to Release Funds 
I P000124 

2021-06-03 Court Minutes – Minute Order Re: 
Motions for Reconsideration and for 
Release of Funds 

III P000423-
P000424 

2021-05-13 Edgeworths' Motion for Order 
Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring the Production of 
Complete Client File 

II P000248-
P000322 

2021-07-01 Edgeworth's Motion for 
Reconsideration of Order on Motion 
for Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring the Production of 
Complete Client File And Motion to 
Stay Execution of Judgments 
Pending Appeal 

III P000433-
P000446 

2021-05-21 Edgeworths' Reply in Support of 
Motion for Order Releasing Client 
Funds and Requiring the Production 
of Complete Client File 

II P000372-
P000391 

2021-07-17 Edgeworth's Reply in Support of 
Motion for Reconsideration of Order 
on Motion for Order Releasing Client 
Funds and Requiring the Production 
of Complete Client File And Motion 
to Stay Execution of Judgments 
Pending Appeal 

III/IV P000490-
P000705 

2021-04-13 Excerpts of Opposition to Mot. to 
Reconsider  

I P000124A-
P000124E 
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EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET AL. vs.  
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON 

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.                 . 
PETITIONERS' APPENDIX  

 
ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

 
DATE DOCUMENT TITLE VOL. BATES 

NOS. 
2021-05-26 Letter Re: Funds Transfers II P000392-

P000393 
2021-04-13 Nevada Supreme Court Clerk's 

Certificate Judgment Affirmed  
I P000125-

P000141 
2018-01-02 Notice of Amended Attorney's Lien I P000006 – 

P000010 
2017-11-30 Notice of Attorney's Lien I P000001 – 

P000005 
2021-09-14 Notice of Entry of Decision and 

Order Denying Edgeworths' Motion 
for Reconsideration of Order on 
Motion for Order Releasing Client 
Funds and Requiring the Production 
of Complete Client File and Motion 
to Stay Execution of Judgments 
Pending Appeal 

IV P000706-
P000714 

2021-06-18 Notice of Entry of Decision and 
Order Denying Edgeworth's Motion 
for Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring Production of Complete 
File 

III P000425-
P000432 

2021-05-20 Opposition to Edgeworths' Motion 
for Order Releasing Client Funds and 
Requiring Production of File 

II P000323-
P000371 

2019-01-11 Opposition to Plaintiffs' Motion for 
Release of Funds 

I P000071-
P000089 
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EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET AL. vs.  
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON 

SUPREME COURT CASE NO.                 . 
PETITIONERS' APPENDIX  

 
ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

 
DATE DOCUMENT TITLE VOL. BATES 

NOS. 
2021-07-15 Opposition to the Third Motion to 

Reconsider 
III P000447-

P000489 
2021-12-13 Order Consolidating and Partially 

Dismissing Appeals (Filed in Supreme 
Court Case No: 83258) 

IV P000715-
P000719 

2018-12-13 Plaintiffs' Motion for an Order 
Directing Simon to Release Plaintiffs' 
Funds 

I P000029-
P000070 

2021-05-03 Plaintiffs' Renewed Motion for 
Reconsideration of Third-Amended 
Decision and Order Granting in Part 
and Denying in Part Simon's Motion  
for Attorney's Fees and Costs, and 
Motion for Reconsideration of Third 
Amended Decision and Order on 
Motion to Adjudicate Lien 

I/II P000142-
P000247 

2019-01-28 Plaintiffs' Reply to Opposition to 
Plaintiffs' Motion for Release of 
Funds 

I P000090-
P000123 

2021-05-27 Recorder's Transcript of Pending 
Motions  

II P000394-
P000422 

 UNUSED BATES NUMBERS I P000011 – 
P000028 
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EXCERPTS FROM "SUPER BILL" WFTH
SIMON POST-DISCHARGE ENTRIES
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INVOICE FOR DANIEL S. SIMON
EDGEWORTHv. LANGE, ETAL.

Date

5/27/16

5/28/16

5/31/16

6/1/16

6/2/16

6/2/16

6/3/16

6/3/16

6/3/16

6/5/16

6/10/16

6/13/16

6/14/16

6/22/16

7/11/16

7/12/16 -
7/13/16

7/14/16

7/14/16

7/18/16

7/19/16

7/19/16

Description

Email Chain with Client Re: Representation

Email Chain with Client Re: Client Meeting

Receive, Review and Analyze Email From Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email From Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email From Client

Email Chain with Client

Email Chain with Client with Attachment

Email Chain From Client with Website Attachment

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Viking and to Client

Email Chain with Client

Email Chain with Client

Draft and Send Email to Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

Email Chain with Client

Email Chain with AD, SC, SR; Re: Representation ofLange

Bmail Chain with Client

R-eceive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

R-eceive, Review and Analyze Email from Viking, Forward to Client
ivith Attachments; Receive, Review and Analyze Response from
client; Review File; Email Chain with Client

deceive. Review and Analyze Email from Client with Attachment

Small Chain with Client

Draft and Send Email to AD; Re: SAG Amend Complaint

Time

.25

.40

.40

,40

.40

.40

.50

.40

.40

.40

.75

.25

.25

.40

.25

1.25

.25

1.75

.75

.50

.25
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11/11/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

Email Chain with Client with Attachment; Review and Analyze Mediator

Proposal

Draft and send email with attachments to AF

Review Viking Motion for MSC and Stay all Rulings; Discussion

with AF; Review Letter to DC Bulla; Telephone Conference with

Floyd Hale; Telephone Conference with J. Olivas Re: Deposition

Email chain with AF re complaint filed against Harold Rodgers

Draft and send email to AF re research re privilege log and

confidentiality issues and review AF response

Draft and send email to AF re supplementing Pomerantz opinion

letter

Email chain with AF re expert depositions noticed by Viking

Prepare for 11/14/17 Hearings

Review Pomerantz Report and Produce; Discussion with Pomerantz;

Discussion with Charles Rego from UL and Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email From JO; Re: Additional

Emails

Email Chain with AF/CP with Attachments Re: Henderson

Email from CP with Opinion letter

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client; Discussion with

Client

Bmail Chain with Client with Attachment

Draft and Send Email to Client

3mail Chain with Client

3mail Chain with Client

deceive. Review and Analyze Email from Client

3rafit and Send Email to Client with Attachment

.50

.15

2.25

.25

.75

.15

.15

2.25

2.75

.25

.15

.75

.15

.25

.50

.15

.15

.50

.15

.15
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11/13/17

11/13/17

11/13/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/13/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/14/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with AMF

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Email Chain with Client

Email Chain with JP, AF, TP; Re: Inspection of Documents

Email Chain with D. Holloman, JP, KR, JM; Re: Hale Settlement

Matters

Attend Hearings on MSJ; Review File with Client; Review Research;

Prepare Emails to Pancoast Re: Depositions and Discovery

Responses; Discussion with Attorney Olgivie Re: Retention; Email

to Parker; Discussion with AF; Review Plaintiffs' 14th ECC

Supplement; Review files

Draft and Send Email to Ogilvie with Attachments

Telephone Call with Ogilvie Regarding Retention

R-eview cases re: validity of contract under NRS 624; discussion with

AJF and BM

Review research re: admissibility of litigation conduct; discussion

with BJM

Discussion with BJM re: recoverable damages w/ breach of contract

/s. product liability

R-eceive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

deceive. Review and Analyze Email from Client

deceive, Review and Analyze Email from Client with Link

;all with Client

fall with Client

.25

.50

.25

.10

.15

.10

.10

.40

.25

.25

7.5

.75

.50

2.75

.75

.75

.15

.25

.40

.25

.50
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11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/15/17

11/16/17

11/16/17

11/16/17

11/16/17

11/16/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/17/17

11/18/17

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with AMF

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Client

Call with Client

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Client

Sail with Client

Email Chain with EC, JP, AF, MN, TP, KR; Re: Olivas Deposition

Draft and Send Email to Ogilvie with Links

Prepare and Attend Hearings

Several discussions with clients from office

deceive. Review and Analyze Email from Client with Link

deceive, Review and Analyze Email from L. Rotert; Pomerantz Bill

3raft and Send Email to Client with Links

.25

.10

.10

.75

.25

.25

.15

.15

.10

.15

.10

.10

.50

.25

.10

.15

.15

.65

.15

.15

.25

4.5

.50

.40

.15

.15
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11/18/17

11/20/17

11/20/17

11/20/17

11/20/17

11/20/17

11/21/17

11/21/17

11/22/17

11/22/17

11/22/17

11/22/17

11/22/17

11/24/17

11/24/17

11/25/17

11/25/17

11/25/17

11/26/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

Email Chain with JP, AF, TP, BP, JH, KR; Re: MIL Meeting.

Discovery with AF.

Email chain with AF re outstanding expert bills

Email chain with AF re meet and confer for MILS and hearing for

Giberti's MGFS

Email chain with AF re Knez letter and threat of motion to file

protective order in CA for Rodgers and Rene Stone depos

Email Chain with Ogilvie and AF; Re: Permit App

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client; Forward to AF

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

Call with Client

Draft and send email to AF re recent list of damages and review AF

response

Email Chain with Ogilvie, AF with Attachments; Re: Lange Supp

Brief

Draft and send email to AF re sending Lange responses brief to

Oglivie and review AF response

Review notices of vacating deposition ofRene Stone and Harold

Rodgers

Review Lange's 12th ECC Supplement

Review correspondence from Dalacas

R-eview email filings and depo emails

Call with Client

^all with Client

2a\\ with Client

review Lange Discovery responses and attachments

F/C with J. Olivas re deposition

review hearing transcript from 1 1/14/17 hearing

.50

.25

.25

.25

.25

.15

.25

.10

.15

.15

.15

.50

.25

.25

1.50

.10

.10

.15

1.50

.35

1.50
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11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/27/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

T/C with T. Parker and Henriod (x3)

Conference call with T. Parker, J. Pancoast and JEA to continue

hearings; Emails

Receive, Review and Analyze Email From JO; Re: Final Invoice

T/C's with Teddy Parker

Email Chain with JP, TP, AF, KR, DP, JH; Re: MIL / Expert

Depositions

Email Chain with Bess White, TP, JP; Re: Edgeworth MOT for

Summary Judgement

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

Draft and Send Email to Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email from Client

Draft and Send Email to Client

Receive, Review and Analyze Email &om Client

Draft and send email to AF re Carnahan depo and review AF

response

Email Chain with JP, AF, KR, JH; Re: Outstanding Discovery

Bmail Chain with EN, JP, KR, DP; Re: Letter from Parker

review Lange letter (11/28/17), analyze; discussion with AF

review Amended Notice ofCaraahan Depo

conference call with Judge Bulla chambers w/ Pancoast to reset

December 1st hearings to December 20th and call with Pancoast

leparately

review notices of vacating depos

imail Chain with Ogilvie to Discuss Case

deceive and analyze email from Ogilvie

imail Chain with EN, JP, TP; Re: Letter from Parker

imail Chain with JP, AF; Re: Discovery Motions

.75

1.0

.25

.65

.50

.35

.15

.15

.15

.25

.25

.15

.15

.50

1.25

.25

.50

.50

,15

1.50

,50

15
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11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/29/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

11/30/17

Draft and send email to AF re drafting reply to Lange's supplemental

Opposition

Draft and send email to AF re drafting notice of attorney lien

Draft and send email to AF re letter from Pancoast to Simon

Review and analyze Lange's supplemental brief

Email from client Angela Edgeworth

Email response to client Angela Edgeworth

Review and analyze email from Oligilvie re: contractors license legal

arguments and response email to Oligilvie; Discussion with AF

Draft reply to Lange's Supplemental Opposition to Plaintiffs' MS J

Discussions w/ J. Henriod re moving hearings and settlement

T/C with T. Parker

Draft letter to Parker

Review release; T/C J. Greene; T/C T. Parker; revise release

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with Teddy Packer

Call with AMF

Call with Teddy Parker

Call with AMF

Call with AMF

Call with AMF

Call with AMF

Review file for Lange bills, T/C to Parker re: settlement

Negotiate release w/ Henriod (his office)

Conversation w/ Green; draft email, send release

R.eceive and review letter dated 11-30-17

1.50

.15

.15

2.50

.15

.25

1.50

2.75

.65

.50

.50

1.25

.15

.15

.10

.25

.15

.10

.10

.20

.10

.75

3.50

.75

.25
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11/30/17

11/30/17 &
12/2/17

12/1/17

12/1/17

12/1/17

12/1/17

12/4/17

12/4/17

12/4/17

12/5/17

12/5/17

12/5/17

12/5/17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12/7/17

12/7/17

Received and reviewed Lange letter (11-29-17) regarding scheduling

discovery; Discussion with AF

Email chain with AF re attorney lien

Email Chain with JP, AF, DP, JH, MB, KR; Re: Discovery Motions

Receive and review release email to Defendant

Receive and review release email from Pancoast & discussion with

AF

Review Viking's 19th ECC Supplement

Received and reviewed DCRR; L/M for GreenA^annah

Review notice vacating UL Depos

Discussion with AF

T/c with John Green; Email from John Green; Discussion with staff

Review subpoena to Dalacas

Emails to client and John Greene messages

Draft and Send Email to Client and Response

Draft and send email to AF re notice to vacate Caranahan depo

Review file and gather materials requested by Vannah; email from

k>hn Greene

Smail from AF re evidentiary hearing from Judge Jones law clerk

md discussion with AF

review notice of vacating depo ofCamahan

deceive and review email from Janet Pancoast; discussion with AF;

esponse; forward to Vannah

deceived and reviewed Lange's 13 ECC Supplement

imail Chain with JP, AF; Re: Carnahan Deposition

imail Chain with JP, AF, TP, KR, JM, JH, DP, SM; Re: Evidentiary

tearing

7C with Vannah

.75

.15

.15

.75

.50

.25

.75

.25

.40

.40

.25

.50

.15

.15

2.25

.50

.35

.35

.50

,15

,35

,50
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12/7/17

12/8/17

12/8/17

12/8/17

12/8/17

12/11/17

12/11/17

12/11/17

12/11/17

12/11/17

12/12/17

12/12/17

12/6/17-

12/12/17

12/12/17

12/12/17

12/14/17

12/15/17

12/18/17

12/18/17

Draft and revise letter; Review of file to Vannah w/ attachment

Received and reviewed Lange 14' ECC Supplement

Review Motion for Good faith settlement; discussion with AF

Received and review order granting Giberti Motion for Good Faith

Settlement; T/C with Parker

Email chain with AF re Order Granting Giberti MGFS

Email from Zamiski; Response email

Review/ Analyze Lange 15th ECC Supplement

T/C Parker & Pancoast; Email from T. Parker; Email from Crt

Review client's release of claims; emails to J. Greene; Discussions

with AF

Draft and send email to AF re Lange's 15 ECC Supplement and

review AF response

Draft and send email to AF re Stip to Dismiss and review AF

response

Attend hearing on Viking Motion for Good Faith Settlement

Messages; Returned messages; discussions with Floyd Hale

Bmail from J. Pancoast; Received/Reviewed/Analyze stip to dismiss;

3rder on Good faith settlement; discussion with AF

deceived letter from Pancoast to DC Bulla; Pancoast email re checks

uid signing stips

review both stips to dismiss; send to J. Pancoast; T/C to M. Nunez;

review email from J. Pancoast

review email from T.Ure; T/C to J. Pancoast re 2nd stip to dismiss

md arrange pick up of settlement checks

lick up settlement checks; exchange for stip; contact Vannah's office

e signature

F/C and emails to J. Greene re checks; T/C to Pomerantz office re

)ill; emails; review bills from Pomerantz

1.75

1.25

.75

.50

.15

.15

.50

.75

.50

.25

.15

1.75

.50

1.25

.50

.50

.50

1.50

1.0
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12/18/17

12/19/17

12/19/17

12/20/17

12/20/17

12/21/17

12/21/17

12/23/17

12/26/17

12/26/17

12/26/17

12/27/17

12/28/17

12/28/17

12/28/17

12/29/17

1/2/18

1/2/18

1/2/18

1/2/18

1/2/18

1/2/18

Received, reviewed and analyze email from B. Vannah

Emails to B. Vannah and J. Greene re checks

Received and review email from B. Vannah to J. Christensen;

Received and review email from J. Christensen and response from B.

Vannah

Request return of sprinklers from Volmer Grey

Receive and review draft Motion for Good Faith Settlement; Lange

release for $ 100k and release for $22k

Review emails from Pancoast and Parker; revise joint motion for

good faith settlement and send back to Parker

Receive, review and analyze email from B. Vannah (3:21pm)

Received, reviewed and analyzed email from B. Vannah (10:45pm)

Receive, review and analyze email from J. Christensen to B. Vannah

(10:46am)

Receive, review and analyze email from B. Vannah (12:18pm)

Receive, review and analyze email from J. Christensen

Receive, review and analyze email from JC w/e letter attached

Receive, review and analyze email from B. Vannah (3:07pm)

R-eceive, review and analyze email from B. Vannah (2:03pm)

Receive, review and analyze email from B. Vannah (4:17am)

Received and reviewed email re joint motion and revised joint

notion

Revise Lange release and send back to T. Parker

R.eceived/reviewed Viking stip to dismiss

[(.eceived/reviewed email from J. Pancoast and T. Parker

?.eceived/reviewed and analyzed letters from Zurich re settlement

;hecks

deceived, reviewed and analyzed email from J. Greene (3:45pm)

F/C with S. Guidy at Bank of Nevada

.50

.25

.25

.25

1.50

.75

.50

.50

.25

.75

.25

.75

.75

.25

.75

.40

.75

.35

.35

.25

.25

,50

Page 78

SIMONEH0000239

P000236



1/3/18

1/3/18

1/4/18

1/4/18

1/4/18

1/4/18

1/4/18

1/5/18

1/5/18

1/5/18

1/8/18

1/8/18

T/C w/ S. Guindy at Bank of Nevada; Received, reviewed and

analyzed email with attachments

Analyze , review schedule and additional emails from S. Guindy

Analyze, receive and send emails to S. Guindy at Bank of Nevada;

Review Emails from J. Christensen and Bank, J. Greene

Email from T. Parker (E Nunez) re Joint MGFS, sign and return to T.

Parker

Email to T. Parker and E. Nunez regarding revisions to release

Travel to Bank of Nevada for bank account requested by client

Email E. Nunez releases again per her request

Email from S. Guiindy and response

Email from Nunez

Review Court filing ofMGFS Lange

T/C with S. Guindy; receive, review and analyze letter from Vannah

Travel to Bank of Nevada 2x re Trust deposit

Review all Emails concerning service of all pleadings (679 emails)

Total Hours

Total Fees at $550 per hour

.75

.50

.75

.50

.50

1.50

.25

.25

.15

.25

.50

2.5

135.80

866.20

$476,410.00
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EXHIBIT KK
EXCERPTS FROM "SUPER BILL" WITH
FERREL POST-DISCHARGE ENTRIES
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INVOICE FOR ASHLEY M. FERREL
EDGEWORTHv. LANGE PLUMBING, ETAL.

11/27/17

11/28/17

11/28/17

11.28.17

11.28.17

11.29.17

11.29.17

11/29/17

11.29.17

11.29.17

11.29.17

11.29.17

11.30.17

11.30.17

11.30.17

11/30/17
11/30/17

11.30.17 & 12.2.17
12/1/17

12.1.17

Draft and serve notice to vacate deposition
ofAnthasia Dalacas

Draft and serve amended deposition notice
and subpoena for Robert Carnahan

Review Letter from Lange and discussion
with DSS
Review, Download & Save Subpoena
Duces Tecum for Robert Carnahan PE

Review, Download & Save Amended
Notice of Continued Video Deposition of
Robert Carnahan P.E. Duces Tecum

Review, Download & Save Defendants The
Viking Corporation and Supply Network,
Inc.'s 19th Supplemental NRCP 16.1
Disclosure

Review, Download & Save Correspondence
to Counsel, dated November 29, 2017
Review Olgilvie response to Lange's
Supplement to MSJ; Discussion with DSS
re Reply

Review email from DSS re drafting reply to
Lange's supplemental Opposition
Review email from DSS re drafting notice
3f attorney lien
Review email from DSS re letter from
Pancoast to Simon

Email to Pancoast re hearing dates I front of
DC Bulla in light of negotiations
3mail to George Ogilvie instmcting him to
>top working on the case
review. Download & Save Letter to
counsel

review. Download & Save Correspondence
o Discovery Commissioner Bulla regarding
hearings
review Viking's l9tn ECC SupplemenT

review Letter from Lange regarding
liscovery scheduling and discussion with
)SS
imail chain with DSS re attorney lien

)raft Notice of Attorney Lien, serve and
irepare & send all liens certified mail return
eceipt requested
leview. Download & Save Lange
•lumbing Verification to Rogs

0.25

0.25

0.75

0.30

0.30

0.30

0.30

0.50

1.50

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.15

0.30

3.30

1.0

3.75

).15

1.5

).30
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INVOICE FOR ASHLEY M. FERREL
EDGEWORTHv. LANGE PLUMBING, ETAL.

12.1.17

12/1/17

12/4/17

12/4/17
12/4/17

12.4.17

12.4.17

12.5.17
12/6/17
12.6.17

12/6/17

12/6/17

12.6.17

12.6.17

12.7.17

12/8/17

12/8/17

12.8.17

12/8/17

12.8.17

Review, Download & Save Notice of
Attorney Lien
Review Release from Viking and discussion
with DSS re release

Draft and serve notice to vacate deposition
ofUL Laboratories
Review Lange written discovery responses
Discussion with DSS re scheduling and
status of case
Review, Download & Save Notice Vacating
the 2nd Amended Video Depo of

NRCP30(b) (6) Designees of Underwriters
Laboratories
Review, Download & Save Discovery
Commissioners Report and
Recommendations

Email chain with UL re vacating depo
Review Lange's 13U1 ECC Disclosure

Review email from DSS re notice to vacate
Caranahan depo
Draft and serve Notice to Vacate Robert
Camahan Deposition

TC with Judge Jones law clerk rehearing
scheduling; Discussion with DSS
Review, Download & Save Service Only -
Lange Plumbing 13th Supp to NRCP 16.1
ECC
Review, Download & Save Service Only -
Notice of Vacating the Continued Video
Depo of Robert Camahan
Review, Download & Save MDGF- Def
The Viking Corporation & Supply Network
MGF Settlement & Request for OST
Review Viking Motion for Good Faith
Settlement, Analyze and discussion with
DSS
Review Lange's 14tn and 1 5ttl ECC

Disclosure

Email chain with DSS re Order Granting
Giberti MGFS
Review Stipulation to Dismiss from Viking
and discussion with DSS
Review, Download & Save Lange
Plumbing 15th Supplement to 16.1 ECC List
Witnesses and Docs

0.30

0.50

0.25

1.5

0.40

0.30

0.30

0,15

2.5

0.15

0.50

0,50

0.30

0.30

0.30

0.75

0.50

0.15

0.50

0.30

101
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INVOICE FOR ASHLEY M. FERREL
EDGEWORTHv. LANGE PLUMBING, ETAL.

12.8.17

12/11/17

12.11.17

12.11.17

12/12/17

12.12.17

12.13.17

1/2/18

Review, Download & Save Lange
Plumbing 14th Supp to 16.1ECC List of
Witnesses and Docs
Discussion with DSS re client's release of
claims
Review email from DSS re Lange's 15
ECC Supplement and response
Review email from DSS re Lange's 15
ECC Supplement and response
Review Order granting Giberti Motion for
Good Faith Settlement and discussion with
DSS
Review, Download & Save Ltr. To
Discovery Commissioner Bulla Re.
Settlement

Review, Download & Save NEO Granting
Third Party Def. Giberti Construction LLC
Motion for Good Faith Settlement
Draft Notice of Amended Attorney Lien,
serve and prepare & send all liens certified
mail return receipt requested

TOTAL HOURS x $275 per hour (reduced)
TOTAL FEES

0.30

0.20

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.30

0.30

1.5

762.6
$209,715.00
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EXHIBIT LL 
DEMONSTRATIVE OF POST-

DISCHARGE BILLING BY SIMON AND 
FERREL, WITH BREAKDOWN OF HOURS 

BY ESTIMATED PURPOSE  
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Defendants Edgeworth Family Trust and American Grating, LLC 

(collectively referred to as "Edgeworths") respectfully move this Court for an 

order releasing the Edgeworths' settlement funds now being held in a Bank 

of Nevada Account, requiring the signatures of Robert Vannah and Daniel 

Simon for release, into the Morris Law Group Trust account, and ordering 

the release of over $1.5M in the account that is not reasonably in dispute.  

The Edgeworths further move for an Order requiring Simon to produce 

their complete client file to them or, at a minimum, deposit the complete 

client file with the Court, as he said he would do nearly a year ago.   

This Motion is based on the papers and pleadings on file, the 

declaration of Rosa Solis-Rainey and any argument the Court may consider 

on this matter.   
 

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF 
MOTION FOR RELEASE OF FUNDS AND MOTION FOR PRODUCTION 

OF COMPLETE CLIENT FILE 

The Court is aware of the facts of this case; thus, only those facts 

necessary to address the narrow issues presented by this motion will be 

summarized. 

I. RELEVANT FACTS 

On November 30, 2017, Daniel Simon filed an attorney charging lien 

against settlement proceeds due to the Edgeworths for $80,326.86 in costs 

that were "continuing to accrue." Ex. A. On January 2, 2018, he amended his 

lien, reducing the costs claimed to be accruing to $76,535.931 and attorney 

fees totaling $2,345,450 less payments received from the Edgeworths, for a 

net of $1,977,843.80. See Ex. B. On January 8, 2018, the Viking settlement 

                                           
1  Simon again reduced the cost amount later, and the Edgeworths paid 

the costs, as the Court acknowledged. See Nov. 19, 2018 Decision and Order 
on Motion to Adjudicate Lien at 17:12-13 ("there are no outstanding costs 
remaining owed"). 
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proceeds were deposited into a bank account that requires dual signatures 

for release, Mr. Simon's and Robert Vannah's, whom the Edgeworths had 

retained to help Simon finish finalizing the settlement. Settlement funds in 

excess of those that would satisfy Simon's claimed lien were released to the 

Edgeworths. Today, however, more than $2M remains in that account, of 

which no more than $537,502.50 would completely satisfy the amount this 

Court and the Nevada Supreme Court has ruled would pay Simon all  he 

would be entitled to if  the Edgeworths' pending motion to reconsider this 

Court's Third Amended Decision and Order is denied. Mr. Vannah has 

confirmed he will sign to transfer the funds now; Mr. Simon would not 

agree to the transfer or release of any funds to avoid this motion practice 

and judicial intervention. See Exs. C and D.  

With respect to the case file, the Edgeworths requested in 2017 that 

Simon provide them with all documentation he had regarding the Viking 

settlement discussions. Ex. E. In response, he provided two settlement drafts 

on November 30, 2017. Ex. DD and EE to 5/3/21 Mot. for Recon. In 2018, 

Simon also provided the Edgeworths' "original file," but it was not complete 

and only included selected portions of the file. Ex. F. When the Edgeworths 

realized the file was incomplete, their counsel served Simon's counsel with a 

notice of intent to bring a motion to compel the production of the complete  

file under NRS 7.055(2). Ex. G. After much back and forth addressing 

Simon's alleged obstacles to producing the file, his office sent Mr. 

Edgeworth the file, minus "protected confidential material" and promised to 

deposit the balance of the file with the Court, which he did not do. Ex. H, 

May 27, 2020 Exchanges; see also Exs. 2 – 4 to Pl.'s Opp'n to Mot.for Recon. 

The files he did produce were on a portable hard drive; the files were 

disorganized and often indecipherable, which made review very difficult 

and time consuming. Solis-Rainey Decl. ¶6. 

P000250



 

4 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

M
O

R
R

IS
 L

A
W

 G
R

O
U

P 
80

1 S
. R

AN
CH

O
 D

R .
, S

TE
. B

4 
∙ L

AS
 V

EG
AS

, N
EV

AD
A 

89
10

6 
70

2/
47

4-
94

00
 ∙  F

AX
 70

2/
47

4-
94

22
 

 
Because the file was still not complete, Edgeworths' counsel raised the 

deficiencies in a telephone call to Simon's counsel, James Christensen. Solis-

Rainey Decl. ¶ 9. Mr. Christensen asked that a list of items identified as 

missing be provided so he could discuss it with Mr. Simon. Id. As he 

requested, a letter outlining the deficiencies noted thus far was sent to Mr. 

Christensen on May 4, 2021. Ex. I. Among the deficiencies noted in the 

allegedly "complete" file produced in 2020 was email produced between 

Simon and opposing counsel or other third parties that had been stripped of 

the referenced attachments. The file also did not include correspondence, 

including email, with third parties regarding the settlement of the Viking 

and Lange Plumbing claims. Also missing were earlier drafts of the 

settlement agreements with Viking and Lange, complete communications to 

and from the experts, including expert reports, if any, as well as research 

memos (and much of the research) prepared on behalf of the Edgeworths. 

Id.   

In response to the letter he requested, Mr. Christensen resurrected the 

same excuses raised by Simon's other counsel in 2020 for not producing the 

file. Ex. J. These included the claimed retaining lien on the file and alleged 

confidentiality issues for which he provided no substantiation, both excuses 

raised and presumably resolved when Simon tendered the allegedly 

complete, but in fact incomplete, file in 2020. Nevada law requires Mr. 

Simon, a terminated attorney, to turn over the complete client file. His prior 

productions of incomplete files suggest that the excuses offered for failure to 

produce his complete file show gamesmanship to frustrate the Edgeworths 

that is indicated by the folder Simon named "Finger for Edgeworth" in the 

incomplete file he provided in 2020. Ex. K. The record also demonstrates 

that when seeking to substantiate his "super bill," Simon and his office spent 

extensive time going through what his associate described as a "huge" client 

P000251
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file, much of which was in paper form; with extensive email. See, e.g., Ex. L 

at 106, 108, 109, 111-12. During the August 29, 2018 hearing, in fact, Simon's 

office claimed that all billed entries describing email "ha[d] all been 

produced." Ex. L. at 197. Complete email is among the items missing from 

the file Simon produced. See Ex. J. 

II. LEGAL STANDARD 

This Court found that Simon was discharged November 29, 2017, and 

that he was entitled to the reasonable value of his services after he was 

discharged, from November 30 forward. That decision has been appealed 

and affirmed by the Nevada Supreme Court. In its December 30, 2020 Order 

the Supreme Court said: 
 
. . . . 
 
[w]e conclude that the district  court acted within its sound 
discretion by finding that the Edgeworths constructively 
discharged Simon on November 29, 2017.  

 
Although we conclude that the district court correctly 

found that Simon was entitled to quantum meruit for work done 
after the constructive discharge  . . . we agree with the 
Edgeworths that the district court abused its discretion by 
awarding $200,000 in quantum meruit without making findings 
regarding the work Simon performed after the constructive 
discharge. 
 

12/30/20 Order, Nev. Sup. Ct. Case Nos. 77678/76176 rehearing denied) 

(emphasis added and citations omitted).  Simon challenged the amount 

awarded to him in a writ proceeding in the Supreme Court, which was 

consolidated with two other then-pending cases for most of the appellate 

proceedings. It was deconsolidated for disposition on December 28, and on 

December 30, 2020, the Supreme Court issued an Order denying the writ 

petition as moot, because the issues had been adjudicated in the Court's 

substantive order issued that same day in which this Court's award of 

$200,000 in quantum meruit was vacated and the case remanded for further 

P000252



 

6 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

M
O

R
R

IS
 L

A
W

 G
R

O
U

P 
80

1 S
. R

AN
CH

O
 D

R .
, S

TE
. B

4 
∙ L

AS
 V

EG
AS

, N
EV

AD
A 

89
10

6 
70

2/
47

4-
94

00
 ∙  F

AX
 70

2/
47

4-
94

22
 

 
proceedings on the basis for awarding the $200,000. 12/30/20 Order, Nev. 

Sup. Ct. 79821 (writ). 

The Edgeworths did not challenge the roughly $285K in fees the 

district court awarded for the period of September 19 to November 29, 2017.  

Id. at 2-3, and at n.3. The Supreme Court Order irrevocably establishes the 

law of the case and now controls in this Court. The law of the case doctrine 

prevents Simon from rearguing that he is entitled to more than the 

reasonable value of the limited services he provided from November 30, 

2017 forward. Hsu v. County of Clark, 123 Nev. 625, 629-30, 173 P.3d 724, 

728 (2007) ("[w]hen an appellate court states a principle or rule of law 

necessary to a decision, the principle or rule becomes the law of the case and 

must be followed throughout its subsequent progress, both in the lower 

court and upon subsequent appeal.")  

With respect to Simon's client file, NRS 7.055 requires that "an attorney 

who has been discharged . . . upon demand and payment of the fee due 

from the client, immediately deliver to the client all papers, documents, 

pleadings and items of tangible personal property which belong to or were 

prepared for that client." The statute goes on to say that "if there is doubt as 

to the ownership" of any portions of the file, it may be deposited with the 

clerk of the court, which Simon said he would do, but did not.   

III. ARGUMENT 

A. The Client's Funds Should be Released to Them. 

The Supreme Court remanded this case to this Court for a limited 

purpose: to explain the basis for the $200K quantum meruit award, and its 

reasonableness.2 In an effort to avoid this motion, the Edgeworths proposed 

to Simon that the account at Bank of Nevada be transferred to Morris Law 
                                           

2  The remand also required that the Court evaluate the reasonableness 
of the fees granted under NRS 18.010(2)(b), but that amount is not in issue in 
this Motion, and the fees will be satisfied from the proceeds once released. 
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Group's Trust Account, and that all uncontested amounts be paid at once to 

Simon and/or his counsel. The contested amount would be maintained in 

the Morris Law Group Trust account, and the balance disbursed to the 

Edgeworths. Simon refused this proposal, taking the position that if the 

Edgeworths could maintain the quantum meruit amount was less than 

awarded by the Court, he could take the position that he is owed more than 

$200,000. This position is not credible under the law of the case. Simon was 

given a full opportunity to adjudicate the amount owed to him; his claim 

that he is entitled to $2.4M in fees (less payments received) has been 

considered and rejected by this Court and affirmed by the Supreme Court. 

He has presented a list of the services performed between November 30 

forward, and he cannot now reopen or enlarge the quantum meruit amount 

or period as he wishes to do. With his compensation issues conclusively 

decided but for the limited post-discharge period, Simon has no legitimate 

excuse for holding over $2M of the Edgeworths' funds hostage. His belief 

that he was entitled to nearly $2M that he alleged in his charging lien filed 

on January 2, 2018 has been conclusively rejected. He cannot, as a matter of 

law, reasonably maintain that he is entitled to more than the $252,520 for 

attorney fees, costs, and quantum meruit that the Supreme Court directed 

this Court to justify would be reasonable. 

Simon's repeated claims that the money is being held pursuant to 

orders of this Court are not substantiated by the record. See Ex. M, Excerpts 

of Simon's Opp'n to Edgeworths' Special Mot. to Dismiss in Case No. A-19-

807433-C at 11:20-21 (stating that "disputed funds remain held in trust . . .  

because the Court ordered that the money should not be distributed 

pending appeal." (emphasis added)); at 27:22-23 ("Following the hearing, 

Judge Jones ordered the funds remain in the account after the Edgeworths 

appealed to the Supreme Court." (emphasis added)); see also Ex. N Excerpts 
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of Simon's Opp'n to Vannah's NRCP 12(b)(5) Mot. to Dismiss at 13:9-10 

("Only the disputed funds remain in the special trust account. Simon is 

following the District Court order to keep the disputed funds safe pending 

appeal."). The Edgeworths' former counsel brought a motion to release the 

funds, after the appeal was noticed but before it was heard. Correctly, 

however, this Court found that "the Court does not have jurisdiction as this 

case has been appealed . . ." 2/5/19 Min. Order. Though the minute order 

instructed plaintiff's counsel prepare the order and submit it to opposing 

counsel for review, and then to the Court, there is no record that instruction 

was followed. A disposition due to lack of jurisdiction is not an instruction 

to withhold all of the funds in the account following appeal, as Simon 

claims. In any event, the appeal has been decided and remand has been 

issued with regard to not all that is held in trust, but only $252,520 of those 

funds.  

Furthermore, Simon's insistence on unilaterally withholding over $2M 

from the settlement proceeds was inconsistent with NRS 18.015(1), which 

permits a charging lien, but only in "the amount of any fee which has been 

agreed upon by the attorney and client." NRS 18.015(1)(b)3; see also, Hoff v. 

Walters, 129 Nev. 1122 (2013) (unpublished) (recognizing statute sets the 

limit on amount of charging lien). Simon knew at the time he asserted the 

lien that the fees he claimed were disputed, and he knew the time spent on 

the file, and the hourly rates that had been established for his firm's work. 

At most, Simon should have asserted a lien only for an amount equal to the 

hours he billed at the rate that he requested and applied throughout his 

relationship with the Edgeworths. 

                                           
3 NRS 18.015(1)(b) in its entirety says "A lien pursuant to subsection 1 

is for the amount of any fee which has been agreed upon by the attorney 
and client. In the absence of an agreement, the lien is for a reasonable fee for 
the services which the attorney has rendered for the client." 

P000255
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Even if Simon legitimately believed that the amount of his lien "was 

the reasonable fee for the services," once the Court determined that Simon 

was not entitled to a contingency or flat fee, and that he was entitled to 

approximately $485,000 in fees, Simon should have immediately released 

the balance of the settlement proceeds that Simon encumbered to the client. 

Nothing in NRS 18.015(1)(b) permits a lawyer to withhold more of the 

client's funds than what was agreed for fees and costs, and certainly not 

more than the Court determined a lien was worth. This is especially true 

when the dispute over the amount owed arises because of the attorney's 

own failure to communicate the basis or rate of his compensation "to the 

client, preferably in writing, before or within a reasonable time after 

commencing the representation." RPC 1.5. 

The approximately $285K based on the implied contract at the hourly 

rates he requested for work performed on or prior to November 29, 2017 has 

been accepted and is not in issue, as the Supreme Court recognized. The 

$200K in quantum meruit for the reasonable value of the limited post-

discharge services provided is all that remains in issue. 

The Edgeworths have sought reconsideration of the quantum meruit 

award because they do not understand the basis for it, and because it does 

not comport with the Supreme Court's mandate. Given the finality of the 

findings that Simon is not entitled to a contingency fee, or a $1M+ flat fee, it 

is unreasonable for him to maintain that the amount held in trust (more than 

$2M) should be held as security for what at most is $200,000 in issue. Please 

remember that the reasonable value of the services Simon provided, post-

discharge, based on his own records, is less than $34,000. He should not be 

allowed to hold approximately $1.5M hostage. 
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B.  The Edgeworths are Entitled to Their Complete Client File. 

Like he is doing with the trust funds on deposit, Simon continues to 

hold the Edgeworths' complete file4 hostage. The Edgeworths have 

requested missing portions of their file since 2017. See Ex. E. The missing 

information from the file was requested in 2018 and Simon produced 

portions of it. See F. Although Simon disputes the earlier request date, he 

cannot dispute that the Edgeworths made clear and unambiguous demands 

for their complete file by May 17, 2020. Ex. G.  

Simon previously told this Court that the file had been produced.  

4/13/21 Opp'n to Mot. for Reconsid. at 6 (under the heading "The 

Edgeworths have the case file," they go on to say: "In 2020, a different 

Edgeworth lawyer asked for the file and the file was given directly to Brian 

Edgeworth as requested."). This representation to the Court was made in the 

context of the Edgeworths' contention that they did not have their complete 

file. See 3/30/21 Mot. for Recon. at 14. Following the 2020 demands for the 

complete file, Simon again threw up obstacles to its production, claiming the 

existence of a retaining lien (which he knew was secured many times over 

by the amount of the settlement funds still tied up due to his refusal to 

release the account) and demanding that counsel sign a protective order in 

place in the underlying case. See Ex. G (re retaining lien); Ex. H at 3 (re 

protective order issue). The Edgeworths' counsel properly reminded Simon 

that the clients were already bound by the protective order and entitled to 

receive their complete file, without counsel needing to sign the protective 

                                           
4 The 2020 exchanges concerning the file acknowledged that "internal 

emails based on relevancy, work product privilege and proportionality" had 
been withheld. See Ex. P. Without waiving any objections or rights 
regarding those "internal" emails, that should nonetheless be preserved in 
light of defamation litigation initiated by Simon, the strictly internal emails 
are not the subject of this Motion.   
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order. Ex. H. Ultimately, Simon's counsel agreed to produce the file, sans the 

"confidential material" from third-parties, and agreed he would deposit "the 

balance of the file with the Clerk." Ex. H at 3. While an electronic drive with 

a portion of the file was sent to Mr. Edgeworth, there is no indication in the 

record that the rest of the file was deposited with the court clerk.    

When Edgeworths' counsel again demanded the file pursuant to NRS 

7.055, Ex. I, Mr. Christensen claimed it had been previously produced, and 

when informed that significant gaps remained, he asked for a list of what 

was believed to be missing. Ex. J. Simon's response to the latest demand for 

the file confirms that despite his contention that the mostly-complete file 

had been produced, is simply not true. Id. Simon's counsel again raises the 

false retaining lien and confidentiality issues raised and addressed, and 

presumably resolved, in 2020. Ex. H.  

The retaining lien issue should be a non-starter given that Simon 

refuses to sign off on releasing the $2M+ funds that he is essentially now 

controlling (Mr. Vannah has unequivocally agreed to sign off on the transfer 

of the funds), despite the Edgeworths' offer to settle all undisputed balances 

owed to him, and maintain the contested portion in trust. Simon is more 

than adequately secured. He cannot legitimately use that excuse to withhold 

the file. Simon resurrected contention that confidentiality issues that were 

resolved nearly one year ago when he produced portions of the file also do 

not support withholding it. The Edgeworths are bound by the 

confidentiality terms in the underlying litigation, and they are entitled to 

their complete client file, especially since Simon has sued them in a separate 

lawsuit. Simon has offered no legitimate reason for continuing withholding 

the Edgeworth's complete file; the Court should order it to be produced, at 

once, consistent with NRS 7.055. 
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IV. CONCLUSION 

 For the foregoing reasons, the Edgeworths respectfully ask that the 

Court issue an order requiring Simon to sign off to transfer the withheld 

settlement trust funds into the Morris Law Group Trust Account, and 

thereafter authorize Morris Law Group to hold $537,502.50 in the Trust 

Account to disburse as set forth below, and to release the remainder of the 

settlement funds to the Edgeworths:  

(1) $284,982.50 to Simon as fees for the period between September 19 

and November 29, 2017;  

(2) $52,520 to Simon for attorney's fees ($50,000) and costs ($2,520) 

awarded under NRS 18.010(2)(b);  

(3) At least $200,000 to be maintained in Trust pending a final 

disposition on the amount Simon is due under quantum meruit.  

The Edgeworths further request pursuant to NRS 7.055, that the Court 

order Simon to turn over their complete client file to them; understanding 

they will remain bound by the confidentiality order for the duration stated 

therein.   
    MORRIS LAW GROUP  
 
    By:    /s/  STEVE MORRIS                                                     
  Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543 
  Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921 
  801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste. B4 
  Las Vegas, Nevada  89106 
 
    Attorneys for Defendants 
    Edgeworth Family Trust and  
    American Grating, LLC 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b) and NEFCR 9, I certify that I am 

an employee of MORRIS LAW GROUP, and that I caused the following to 

be served via the Court's mandatory e-filing and service system to those 

persons designated by the parties in the E-Service Master list for the above-

referenced matter: EDGEWORTHS' MOTION FOR ORDER RELEASING 

CLIENT FUNDS AND REQUIRING THE PRODUCTION OF COMPLETE 

CLIENT FILE 

DATED this 13th day of May, 2021.  
 

By:  /s/ TRACI K. BAEZ                                     
An employee of Morris Law Group  
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DECLARATION OF ROSA SOLIS-RADSTEY IN SUPPORT OF EDGEWORTHS'
MOTION FOR ORDER RELEASING CLIENT FUNDS AND REQUIRING THE

PRODUCTION OF COMPLETE CLIENT FILE

I, Rosa Solis-Rainey, declare as follows:

1. I am an attorney and counsel of record in this matter in this matter and

competent to testify as to the following matters.

2. In hopes of avoiding the need for judicial intervention, on May 3, 2021,1

spoke with Robert Vannah to confirm he was agreeable to signing off on

the transfer of the Edgeworths' settlement funds, and disbursement of the

undisputed portion of the funds. He confirmed he is prepared to sign off

at any time.

3. That same day, I sent Daniel Simon and Jim Christensen, his lawyer/ a

request that the funds in the Bank of Nevada account set up to hold the

funds claimed under Mr. Simon's lien in 2018 be transferred to my firm's

trust account/ and agree that undisputed amounts be immediately

disbursed to Mr. Simon and/or Mr. Christensen, that disputed amounts

continue to be held in our Trust account/ and that the rest be disbursed to

the Edgeworths. A true and correct copy of that letter is attached hereto

as Exhibit C.

4. Mr. Christiansen responded with a letter/ a copy of which is attached here

as Exhibit D.

5. I am informed and believe that the Edgeworths have still not received

their complete client file from Simon, though portions were produced in

2018 and in 2020.

6. I am informed and believe that the portions of the file received were

disorganized and often indecipherable/ which made review very difficult

and time consuming.

7. On May 4/1 called Mr. Christiansen to discuss the request to release the
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funds, and to clarify I understood my obligation not to discuss matters

with represented parties and had not spoken with Simon/ but simply

emailed my 5/3/21 letter to both of them in the interest of efficiency.

With respect to the request to transfer the funds, he confirmed he had no

objection to transferring the money into my firm's Trust account, but

would confirm that with his client. His response to my proposal was that

if the Edgeworths could claim that the amount due under quantum

meruitwas less than the Court ordered/ then he could claim it was more/

and he therefore considered all the funds to be disputed.

8. We discussed the reasonableness of that position given the Court's

decision that Simon was not entitled to a contingency or flat fee/ and save

a couple narrow issues/ those findings had been affirmed by the Supreme

Court. I pointed out that the only disputed issue remaining were the

scrivener errors and the basis and reasonableness of the amount awarded

for work performed from November 30 forward. We could not reach

agreement, but he said he would respond regarding the transfer of the

funds. I have not received a response on that issue.

9. On that same call, I raised the incompleteness of the client file produced

to the Edgeworths/ and he stated the believed it had all been produced. I

described some of the content that was missing/ and he asked that I send

him a list/ which he would review with his client. Exhibit I is a true and

correct copy of the letter I sent requesting release of the entire client file.

10. Exhibit J is his response to that request, reiterating the same excuses

raised by Simon's team in 2020, which I believed had been resolved since

the exchanges say the client file minus documents marked confidential

would be produced/ and the rest deposited with the court.

11. I sent a follow-up email responding to Mr. Christensen's letter on May 11,
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2021, a true and correct copy is attached hereto as Exhibit 0.

12. Exhibits A/ B/ E, G-H, L-N and P are true and correct copies/ or excerpts

thereof/ of documents from the Court record, which I obtained from the

court files.

13. I am informed and believe that Exhibit F is a copy of the receipt Simon

asked Vannah & Vannah to sign when he produced a portion of the file in

2018.

14. I am informed and believe that Exhibit K is a screen print of the folders in

the hard-drive Simon's office provided to Mr. Edgeworth as the client file

in 2020.

I declare the foregoing under penalty of perjury under the laws of the

State of Nevada.

Dated this 13th day of May,2021.
\

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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EXHIBIT A
Simon's Notice of Attorney's Lien Filed on

11/30/2017
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ATLN
DANIEL S. SIMON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4750
ASHLEY M. FERREL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12207
810 S. Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone (702) 364-1650
lawyers@simonlawlv.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Electronically Filed
11,30/2017 5:47 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COU.

'.^ -^*.<,*yv

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; and
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC.;

Plaintiffs,

vs. CASENO.:A-16-738444-C
DEPT.NO.:X

LANGE PLUMBING, L.L.C.;
THE VIKING CORPORATION,
a Michigan corporation;
SUPPLY NETWORK, INC, dba VIKING )
SUPPLYNET, a Michigan corporation; )
and DOES I through V and ROE )
CORPORATIONS VI through X, inclusive, )

)
Defendants. )

J
NOTICE OF ATTORNEY'S LIEN

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon, a Professional

Corporation, rendered legal services to EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST and AMERICAN

GRATING, LLC., for the period of May 1,2016, to the present, in connection with the above-entitled
f

matter resulting from the April 10, 2016, sprinkler failure and massive flood that caused substantial

damage to the Edgeworth residence located at 645 Saint Croix Street, Henderson, Nevada 89012.

That the undersigned claims a lien, pursuant to N.R.S. 18.015, to any verdict, judgment, or

decree entered and to any money which is recovered by settlement or otherwise and/or on account of

the suit filed, or any other action, from the time of service of this notice. This lien arises from the

services which the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon has rendered for the client, along with court costs

and out-of-pocket costs advanced by the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon in an amount to be

Case Number: A-16-738444-C
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determined.

The Law Office of Daniel S. Simon claims a lien for a reasonable fee for the services rendered

by the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon on any settlement funds, plus outstanding court costs and out-

of-pocket costs currently in the amount of $80,326.86 and which are continuing to accrue, as

advanced by the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon in an amount to be determined upon final resolution.

The above amount remains due, owing and unpaid, for which amount, plus interest at the legal rate,

lien is claimed.

This lien, pursuant to N.R.S. 18.015(3), attaches to any verdict, judgment, or decree entered

and to any money which is recovered by settlement or otherwise and/or on account of the suit filed,

or any other action, from^the time of service of this notice.

-,rd
Dated this oQ""'''day of November, 2017.

THE LAW OFFICE OF DANffiL S. SIMON,
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

DANIELS S^@N, ESQ7
Nevada Bar No. 4750
ASHLEY M. FERREL, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 12207
SIMON LAW
810 South Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
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STATE OF NEVADA )
ss

COUNTY OF CLARK )

DANIEL S. SIMON, being first duly sworn, deposes and says:

That he is the attorney who has at all times represented EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST and

AMERICAN GRATING, LLC., as counsel from May 1, 2016, until present, in its claims for damages

resulting from the April 16, 2016, sprinkler failure that caused substantial damage to the Edgeworth

residence located at 645 Saint Croix Street, Henderson, Nevada.

That he is owed for attorney's fees for a reasonable fee for the services which have been

rendered for the client, plus outstanding court costs and out-of-pocket costs, currently in the amount

of $80,326.86, and which are continuing to accrue, as advanced by the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon

in an amount to be determined upon final resolution of any verdict, judgment, or decree entered and

to any money which is recovered by settlement or otherwise and/or on account of the suit filed, or any

other action, from the time of service of this notice. That he has read the foregoing Notice of

Attorney's Lien; knows the contents thereof, and that the same is true of his own knowledge, except

as to those matters therein stated on information and belief, and as to those matters, he believes them

to be true,

DANIELS^SMON

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN
before me this SO day of November, 2017

^fZo
TRISHATUTTLE

HtXfy Pubtto SUte of Navda
No. 08.8840-1

My Appt Exp. Auw 19, 20t8
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CERTIFICATE OF MAIL

I hereby certify that on this ri^C^~aay of November, 2017,1 served a copy, via Certified Mail,

Return Receipt Requested, of the foregoing NOTICE OF ATTORNEY'S LIEN on all interested

parties by placing same in a sealed envelope, with first class postage fully prepaid thereon, and

depositing in the U. S. Mail, addressed as follows:

Brian and Angela Edgeworth
645 Saint Croix Street
Henderson, Nevada 89012

An Employe;

Page 5
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CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE & U.S. MAIL

i^
Pursuant to NEFCR 9, NRCP 5(b) and EDCR 7.26,1 certify that on this ^Oday of

November, 2017,1 served the foregoing NOTICE OF ATTORNEY'S LIEN on the following

parties by electronic transmission through the Wiznet system and also via Certified Mail- Return

Receipt Requested:

Theodore Parker, HI, Esq.
I PARKER NELSON & ASSOCIATES
2460 Professional Court, Ste. 200

LasVegas,NV89128
.Attorney for Defendant
Lange Plumbing, LLC

Janet C. Pancoast, Esq.

CISNEROS & MARIAS
1160 ~N. Town Center Dr., Suite 130

Las Vegas,NV 89144
Attorney for Defendant
The Viking Corporation and

Supply Network, Inc. dba Viking Supplynet

Angela Bullock
Kinsale Insurance Company
2221 Edward Holland Drive, Ste. 600
Richmond, VA 23230
Senior Claims Examiner for

Kinsale Insurance Company

Michael J. Nunez, Esq,
MURCHISON & GUMMING, LLP
350 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 320

Las Vegas, NV 89145
Attorney for Third Party Defendant
Giberti Construction, LLC

Randolph P.Sinnott, Esq.

SINNOTT, PUEBLA, CAMPAGNE
& CURET, APLC
550 S. Hope Street, Ste. 2350

Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attorney for Zurich American Insurance Co.

An^fifnpro^ee/6^ $IMON LAW

Page 4
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EXHIBIT B
Notice of Simon's Amended Attorney's Lien

Filed on 1/2/2018
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Electronically Filed
1/2/2018 4:46 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COU.

ATLN
DANIEL S. SIMON, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4750
ASHLEY M. FERREL, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 12207
81 OS. Casino Center Blvd,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone (702) 364-1650
lawyers@simonlawlv.com
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; and
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC.;

Plaintiffs,

vs. CASE NO.: A-16-738444-C
DEFT. NO.: X

LANGE PLUMBING, L.L.C.;
THE VIKING CORPORATION,
a Michigan corporation;
SUPPLY NETWORK, INC., dba VIKING )
SUPPLYNET, a Michigan corporation; )
and DOES I through V and ROE )
CORPORATIONS VI through X, inclusive, )

)
Defendants. )

-)

NOTICE OF AMENDED ATTORNEY'S LIEN

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon, a Professional

Corporation, rendered legal services to EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST and AMERICAN

GRATING, LLC., for the period of May 1,2016, to the present, in connection with the above-entitled

matter resulting from the April 10,2016, sprinkler failure and massive flood that caused substantial

damage to the Edgeworth residence located at 645 Saint Croix Street, Henderson, Nevada 89012.

That the undersigned claims a total lien, in the amount of $2,345,450.00, less payments made

in the sum of $367,606.25 for a final lien for attorney's fees in the sum of $1,977,843.80, pursuant

toN.R.S. 18.015, to any verdict, judgment, or decree entered and to any money which is recovered

by settlement or otherwise and/or on account of the suit filed, or any other action, from the time of

service of this notice. This lien arises from the services which the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon has

Case Number: A-16-738444-C
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rendered for the client, along with court costs and out-of-pocket costs advanced by the Law Office

of Daniel S. Simon in the sum of $76,535.93, which remains outstanding.

The Law Office of Daniel S. Simon claims a lien in the above amount, which is a reasonable

fee for the services rendered by the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon on any settlement funds, plus

outstanding court costs and out-of-pocket costs currently in the amount of $76,535.93, and which are

continuing to accrue, as advanced by the Law Office of Daniel S. Simon in an amount to be

determined upon final resolution. The above amount remains due, owing and unpaid, for which

amount, plus interest at the legal rate, lien is claimed.

This lien, pursuant to N.R.S. 18.015(3), attaches to any verdict Judgment, or decree entered

and to any money which is recovered by settlement or otherwise and/or on account of the suit filed,

or any other action, from thg time of service of this notice.
/><y

Dated this ^ "^day of January, 2018.

THE LAW OFFICE QF DANIEL S. SFMON,
A PROFESSIONAfe^CORPORATION

DANIEL S. SpON^ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 4750
ASHLEY M. FERREL, ESQ,
Nevada Bar No. 12207
810 South Casino Center Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
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CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE & U.S. MAIL

Pursuant to NEFCR 9, NRCP 5(b) and EDCR 7.26,1 certify that on this ^ day of January,

2018,1 served the foregoing NOTICE OF AMENDED ATTORNEY'S LIEN on the following

parties by electronic transmission through the Wiznet system and also via Certified Mail- Return

Receipt Requested:

Theodore Parker, III, Esq,
PARKER NELSON & ASSOCIATES
2460 Professional Court, Ste. 200

Las Vegas, NV 89128
Attorney for Defendant

Lange Plumbing, LLC

Janet C. Pancoast, Esq.

CISNEROS & MARIAS
1160 N. Town Center Dr., Suite 130

Las Vegas, NV 89144
Attorney for Defendant
The Viking Corporation and

Supply Network, Inc. dba Viking Supplynet

Angela Bullock
Kinsale Insurance Company
2221 Edward Holland Drive, Ste. 600
Richmond, VA 23230
Senior Claims Examiner for
Kinsale Insurance Company

Michael J. Nunez, Esq.

MURCHISON & GUMMING, LLP
350 S. Rampart Blvd., Ste. 320

LasVegas,NV89145
Attorney for Third Party Defendant
Giberti Construction, LLC

Randolph P.Sinnott, Esq.
SINNOTT, PUEBLA, CAMPAGNE
& CURET, APLC
550 S. Hope Street, Ste. 2350

Los Angeles, CA 90071
Attorney for Zurich American Insurance Co.

^^
An Empfo^ee of ^[ON LAW '

Page 3
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CERTIFICATE OF U.S. MAIL

^
I hereby certify that on this ^ r day of January, 2018,1 served a copy, via Certified Mail,

Return Receipt Requested, of the foregoing NOTICE OF AMENDED ATTORNEY'S LIEN on all

interested parties by placing same in a sealed envelope, with first class postage fully prepaid thereon,

and depositing in the U. S. Mail, addressed as follows:

Brian and Angela Edgeworth
645 Saint Croix Street
Henderson, Nevada 89012

Edgeworth Family Trust
645 Saint Croix Street
Henderson, Nevada 89012

Bob Paine
Zurich North American Insurance Company
1 OS. Riverside Plz.
Chicago, IL 60606
Claims Adjuster for
Zurich North American Insurance Company

American Grating
1191 Center point Drive, Ste. A
Henderson, NV 89074

Robert Vannah, Esq.
VANNAH &VANNAH
400 South Seventh Street, Ste. 400
LasVegas,NV89101

Joel Henriod, Esq.
Lewis Pv.oca PvOthgerber Christie
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Ste. 600
LasVegas,NV89169
The Viking Corporation and
Supply Network, Inc. dba Viking Supplynet

€~\ -^
An Employee^SlMON LAW

Page 4
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EXHIBIT C
Correspondence dated May 3, 2021 to Daniel S.

Simon from Rosa Solis-Rainey
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ATTORNEYS AT LAW

801 S. RANCHO DR., STE. B4
I-AS V(2BAs, NV amoe

TEI-EPHONE: •702/4'74-0400

FACSlMlfc.tS:; 702/474-9422,
WEBSiTE; WWW.MORRISt.AWGROUP.COKI

May 3,2021

VIA EMAIL: dan@simonlawlv,a3m
Daniel S. Simon/ Esq.

810 S. Casino Center Blvd.

Las Vegas, NV 89101

Re: Eighth Judicial District Court Case No. A-16-738444-C,
Consolidated with A-18-767242-C

Dear Mr. Simon:

As you are aware/ we have been retained to represent the Edgeworth

Family Trust, and American Grating, LLC in the above-referenced consolidated

cases6-738444-C and/ you were involved in.

Since the Court has determined that you are not entitled to the amounts

claimed in your Amended Attorney Lien, we ask that you cooperate with us for

the orderly closing of the joint accourit you and Mr. Vannah established for the
portion of my clients' settlement funds that you unsuccessfully claimed in your

lien. Without waiving any rights as to the propriety of the amount you may be
entitled to, we propose having the full amount in Judge Jones' Third Amended
Decision and Order on Motion to Adjudicate Lien transferred to our firm's Trust

Account, which is also held at Bank of Nevada, so that the portion of the funds to

which the Edgeworths are entitled may be released to them. We would, of

course/ retain at least the $556,577.43 that remains at issue until the lien dispute is

finally adjudicated. I have confirmed that Mr. Vannah is prepared to sign off to

release the funds as proposed.

Please let me know by close of business Wednesday, May 5,2021 if you will

agree to this proposal. Otherwise/ we will take this matter up with the Court. If
you have any questions or wish to discuss, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely,

ec:

Rosa Solis-Ramey

James R. Christensen (via email iim@GhnstenseiiLlaw,com)

Robert Vannah (via email: tYarinah@vannahlaw,cc)in)
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EXHIBIT D
Correspondence dated May 4, 2021 to Rosa

Solis-Rainey from James R. Christensen
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
5/4/2021 1:55 PM

James R. Christensen Esq.
601 S. 6th Street

LasVegas,NV89101
Ph: (702)272-0406 Fax: (702)272-0415

E-mail: jim@jchristensenlaw.com

May 4, 2021

Via E-Se/ve

Rosa Solis-Rainey
Morris Law Group
801 S. Rancho Drive Suite B4
LasVegas,NV89106

Re: Edgeworth v. Viking and related matters

Dear Ms. Solis-Rainey:

As you are aware, I represent Mr. Simon and the law firm regarding the fee
dispute with the Edgeworths. As you are also aware, in Nevada an
attorney may not directly contact a represented party. In the future, please
direct all communication to my office and/or the Law Office of Peter
Christiansen. Do not contact my client directly.

I disagree with the characterization of the current state of the fee dispute
contained in your letter. Also, the foundation of the stated deadline for the

requested agreement was not presented. That said, as I informed Mr.
Vannah over 1,200 days ago, my client is open to a collaborative dialogue
to end the fee dispute.

1 I Page

Case Number: A-16-738444-C
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If you are willing to engage in a collaborative discussion, please give me a

call.

Sincerely,

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, P.C.

/S/JO^A^-R. C^r'^M^^^

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN

JRC/dmc
ec: Client(s)

2 | P a a e
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EXHIBIT E
Email dated November 27, 2017 from Angela

Edgeworth to Daniel Simon
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From: Angela Edgeworth <angela.edgeworth@pediped.com>

Sent: Monday, November 27, 2017 5:32 PM

To: Daniel Simon

Cc: Brian Edgeworth (brian@pediped.com)

Subject: Re: Edgeworth v. Viking, et al

I do have questions about the process, and am quite confused. I had no idea we were on anything but an hourly

contract with you until our last meeting.

I am glad to meet once Brian gets back unless you think it's urgent and we meet right away.

If the contract is not drawn yet, we still have some time to hash things out.

I want a complete understanding of what has transpired so I can consult my attorney. I do not believe I need to have

her involved at this time.

Please let me know what the terms of the settlement are to your knowledge at this point if they are not detailed in your

letter. Please send over whatever documentation you have or tell us what they verbally committed to. Otherwise, I will

review the letter in detail and get back to you in a couple days.

In the meantime, I trust we are still progressing with Lange et al and any other immediate concerns that should be

addressed.

As I mentioned at our last meeting, we should still be progressing as originally planned. I would hate to see a delay for

any reason. Until we see an agreement, no agreement exists. Please let me know if there are any upcoming delays that

you can foresee.

I think everyone has been busy over the holidays and has not had a lot of time to process everything.

To confirm,you have not yet agreed to the settlement. Is this correct?

Angela

On Man, Nov 27, 2017 at 4:58 PM Daniel Simon <dan(5)simonlawlv.com> wrote:

I It appears that you have a lot of questions about the process which is one reason I wanted to meet with you. If you

would like to come to the office or call me tomorrow I will be happy to explain everything in detail. My Letter also

explains the status of the settlement and what needs to be done. Due to the holiday they probably were not able to

start on it. I will reach out to lawyers tomorrow and get a status. I am also happy to speak to your attorney as well. Let
me know. Thx

On Nov 27, 2017, at 4:14 PM, Angela Edgeworth <angela.edgeworth@t3edit3ed.com> wrote:

Did you agree to the settlement? Why have they not sent it yet and when is it coming? Please clarify.

Angela
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EXHIBIT F
Simon's Receipt of Original File Produced to

Vannah, June 10, 2019
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RECEIPT OF ORIGINAL FILE

I, fl^ $-(-; {\ \ hiSW£^ tapfop Lutol^, ofVannah & Vannah, hereby acknowledge

receipt of a copy of the original file of Edgeworth Family Trust, American Grating and Giberti

Construction from SIMON LAW that includes the following:

- Edgeworth Custom Residence Blue prints/ plans

- One cabinet door

- Box of 74 Sprinkler pieces returned from Vollmer Grey

- Box of 102 Sprinkler pieces returned from Vollmer Grey

- Partial box of Viking Fusible Link Freedom. Residential Concealed pendent

- Edgeworth Residence Giberti File in Clear Plastic Box, which includes the following:

- Henderson Inspection History

- Folders labeled: Pictures, Invoices, Academy Store, ASE, C & M Doors, Barefoot

Pools, Carono WRG, dark County, Herman Pools, Hybar, Instant Jungle, Julie, Hen

Docs, MacDonald Highlands, Miscellaneous, Ossi's Iron, Pictures, Purvis, S2

Designs, Southwest Specialties, Acme Elevator, Tiberti, Custom Health, Dean

Roofing, Deck Systems of NV, Desert Eagle, Edgeworths, EPOCH Surveying,

Ferguson, G&G Systems, Homtronic, Impulse, Ja Cesare, K&M, Pre Lim Notices,

New Energy Works, Old World Cabinetry, Pacific Masonry, Proposals, Prowest Steel,

Superior Moulding, Target, Terracon, Utilities

- Clear Box Containing the following:

- Two Taylor Thermostat in clear plastic folder

- Bills and supporting documents for 645 Saint Croix clipped

- Redwell with cost basis & supporting docs

- Clear plastic folder labeled Lange/ Kinsale Report Lange C.O.A. Inspection Notes,

- Incorrect Invoices for American Grating

- Logs for Time after Loss

LODS039015
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- Clear plastic Folder labeled "645 Saint Croix- Water Damage Invoices and Estimates

to Immediately Repair"

- ADP payroll report from ADP for Mark Giberti

- Bank Acctount statement showing deposit & transfers and copy of check

- Clear Plastic Folder with documentation for HOA fees, prop. Taxes, and

construction fines

- Chicago Title Folder with Listing Docs

- Gavin Ernstone Folder

- Shapiro & Sher Group Folder

- Holo Discovery Box containing the following:

- Clear folder with SD drive labeled photos and movies

- Copy of photos from 2016-06-13

- Copy ofHenderson Inspection History and Fire Permits

- Edgeworth Fire Sprinkler Replacement Daily Log In Sheet

- Folders Labeled: Lange File, Lange Plumbing, 645 Water Damage Quotes, COH,

Artesia, Classic Framing & Dry, Mark's Sprinkler Emails, 645 Saint Croix, Rafael,

State Insulation, RFI's, Silverado Mech

Dated this \0 .day of June, 2019.

iiu —
Employee of VANNAH-Sf VANNAH
400 South Seventh Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 891011

LODS039016
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EXHIBIT G
Email dated May 17, 2020 from Kendelee

Works to Patricia Lee
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Ashley Ferrel

From: Kendelee Works <kworks@christiansenlaw.com>

Sent: Sunday, May 17, 2020 4:24 PM
To: Patricia Lee

Cc: Peter S. Christiansen; Jonathan Grain

Subject: Simon v. Edgeworth et al: underlying client file

Attachments: Edgeworth Stipulated Protective Order.pdf; ATT00001 .txt

Patricia,

We are in receipt of your Notice of Intent to Bring Motion to Compel Production of Legal File Per NRS 7.055(2). Please

note that because the client has not paid for the services rendered, a retaining lien exists under the law. Additionally,

the 16.1 conference in this case has not taken place (to date, no Defendant has filed an answer) and thus, Plaintiffs are

not yet obligated to produce any documents in the instant litigation. That aside, we are nevertheless willing to work

with you and produce the file. Simon Law has expended substantial time getting the file ready and because it is so large,

they had to purchase an external hard drive. However, it has come to our attention there exists information in the file

that is subject to a protective order that must be addressed prior to disclosure. Please find attached the protective order

for the underlying litigation with Viking and Lange. Specifically, please review the notice provision requiring that we

notify the underlying defendants of any production of these materials prior to releasing the subject documents. The fact

that you are not bound by the pcotective order, of course, raises concerns. If you have any input on addressing these

matters in a professional manner, please let us know at your earliest convenience,
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EXHIBIT H
May 27, 2020 Email Exchanges between Patricia

Lee and Peter S. Christiansen
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From: Patricia Lee <PLee(a)hutchleaal.com>
Subject: RE: Simon v. Edgeworth et al: underlying client file
Date: May 27, 2020 at 2:37:51 PM PDT
To: "Peter S. Christiansen" <Dete(5).christiansenlaw.com>

Cc: Jonathan Grain <icrain@christiansenlaw.com>, Kendelee Works
<kworks@christiansenlaw.com>

Mr. Christiansen: We will inform our client that their attorney file,

sans documents clearly marked "Confidential," should be received by

them shortly. It is my understanding that the "action" to which the

Protective Order pertains is the underlying products defect action,

not the unrelated attorneys' lien matter which involves different

parties and different issues. It is therefore perplexing that you still

consider the litigation to which the Protective Order clearly applies,

to still be "ongoing." In any event, I appreciate your office finally

agreeing to turn over those parts of the file that are not deemed

"Confidential/" (which is what I suggested at the outset when initially
confronted with the "Protective Order") and depositing the balance
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with the Court. As for my comment/ "I'm not refusing anything," it

was not an agreement that I would sign a blanket protective order

with language subjecting my firm to liability. If you read the rest of
my email, it was actually me that was trying to seek clarification

about your firm's position with respect to the Edgeworths' legal file

(which was to be produced by the 14th per the agreement of the

parties).

As for my demands and threats/ they are neither baseless nor

"threatening." It is your firm's actions that have triggered the need

for repeated extra-judiciat intervention by my firm. Indeed, right out

of the gate your firm/ after waiting 3 months to serve a complaint,

ran to court with your "hair on fire" demanding that my clients turn

over all of their personal electronic devices for full imaging by a third

party, with absolutely zero explanation as to the "emergency" or any

explanation as to why extraordinary protocols were even

warranted. When I asked about it during our call, you retorted that

"this was not the time nor place to discuss these issues." When

presented with a different preservation protocol/ that still

contemplated full imaging of "all" electronic devices, I followed up

with a series of clarifying questions, which have gone unanswered by

your firm to date.

Next, your firm files a completely untenable opposition to Ms.

Carteen's routine pro hac vice application, which I tried to resolve

with your associate outside of the need for further motion practice,

which attempts were solidly rebuffed by your office.

Finally/ the simple act of providing a former client with his or her file

has somehow become unnecessarily complicated by the introduction

of a "Protective Order" which your office insisted that my firm

execute prior to the production of the same. The Edgeworths are

absolutely entitled to their legal file without the need to propound
discovery. Thank you for finally agreeing to send it.

It is clear that your office is taking a scorched earth approach to this

litigation in an attempt to inflate costs and wage a war of

attrition. Mr. Simon, who is likely the author of many if not all of the

pleadings and papers being generated on your end,has the luxury of

being an attorney and can therefore better manage and control costs
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on his end/ and use his abilities to vexatiously multiply the

proceedings to the material detriment of my clients.

As I have stated from the first time that you and I spoke on the

phone, it is always my goal to work cooperatively with opposing

counsel so long as doing so does not prejudice my

client. Reciprocally, I would expect the same professionalism on the

other end. Thanks Peter.

Best regards,

From: PeterS. Christiansen [mailto:Dete@christiansenlaw.com]

Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 12:57 PM
To: Patricia Lee <PLee(5)hutchleeal.com>

Cc: Jonathan Grain <icrain@christiansenlaw.com>; Kendelee Works

<kworks@christiansenlaw.com>

Subject: Re: Simon v. Edgeworth et al: underlying client file

Ms.Lee:

Your erratic and inconsistent emails make responding rationally difficult. You

first demanded we turn the Edgeworth file over to you ASAP and followed
with a series of threats. When we agreed to turn over the file but noted there

was a protective order in place you responded that because your client is

bound by the order there should be no issue providing you with the entire

file, including the confidential protected material. We then pointed out that

use of the confidential material was limited to the underlying litigation and
counsel of record in that particular case, which you were not. You then stated

you were not refusing to "sign anything," seemingly indicating you would sign

the Acknowledgement and agreement to be bound. When we sent the Stip

for you to sign you then pivoted and DEMANDED we send the entire file to
the Edgeworths via mail b/c your office is observing covid protocol (which is
funny in light of your ridiculous timed demands for the file forcing my office
to work).

While we are willing to provide the Edgeworth's with their file (despite that
discovery has not yet begun and there remains a charging lien in place), my

client is bound by a protective order which it has become apparent you are

attempting to circumvent (perhaps in an attempt to conjure up another

baseless counterclaim or frivolous accusations against my client). Further, you

stated that it was your understanding that the underlying dispute has been
concluded for some time and you are unclear what documents we would

have in our possession that would be deemed "protected." Your

understanding is incorrect. Pursuant to the protective order, these

documents are only supposed to be destroyed within 60 days of the final
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disposition of the "action." Since the fee dispute litigation is ongoing, these

documents have not been destroyed.

As a result, we will mail the Edgeworths the file without the protected
confidential material. If you want to sign the Acknowledgment and agree to

be bound, we will produce the entire file. Short of that, we intend to deposit

the balance of the file with the clerk and seek the court's guidance as to how

to proceed. That will of course require input from counsel for both Lange and

Viking (Mr. Parkerand Mr. Henriod).

Lastly, please refrain from any further baseless demands, threats and personal

attacks in this matter. We prefer to proceed professionally so that we may all

litigate this case on the merits.

Thanks,

PSC

Peter S. Christiansen, Esq.

Christiansen Law Offices
810 S. Casino Center Boulevard

LasVegas,NV89101
Phone (702)240-7979
Fax (866) 412-6992

This email is intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is
addressed, and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and/or

exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If the reader of this email is not

the intended recipient, or the employee or agent responsible for delivering

the email to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any

dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is strictly

prohibited.

From: Patricia Lee <PLee(®hutchleeal.com>

Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 8:52 AM

To: Kendelee Works

Cc: Peter S. Christiansen; Jonathan Grain

Subject: Re: Simon v. Edgeworth et al: underlying client file

Please confirm that you have mailed the Edgeworth's legal file.

Best regards,

Sent from my iPhone
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On May 22, 2020, at 3:40 PM, Kendelee Works
<kwot-l<s@christiansenLaw,com> wrote:

The file is ready for pick-up by the Edgeworth's, Please sign and

return the Acknowledgment sent this morning prior to having the

file picked up so that we may release it without any concerns for

our respective clients. The file can be picked up any time before

5:00 p.m. at 810 S. Casino Center Blvd, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101.

Please note that Simon Law has retained internal emails based on

relevancy, work product privilege and

proportionality. Additionally, at the request of Mr. Parker, the

Lange Plumbing Tax Returns are not being produced. If you have

additional concerns, you may reach me on my cell anytime: (702)

672-8756.

On May 22, 2020, at 10:28 AM, Patricia Lee
<PLee@hutchlegal.com> wrote:

I'm not refusing anything. I'm asking you to

please produce my clients' file to them as

requested over a month ago. Also, as you

know/ Lisa is not yet counsel of record on

this matter so I'm not sure why you need

her signature.

So, to be clear, you will produce the

entirety of my clients' legal file today, if I

sign the protective order? Alternatively, I

would expect that you could produce the

non-"confidential// portions of their file

without any issues/ either way. Thanks!

Best regards,

From: Kendelee Works

[mailto:kworks@christiansenlaw.com]

Sent: Friday, May 22, 2020 10:15 AM
To: Patricia Lee <PLee@hutchlegat.com>
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EXHIBIT I
May 4, 2021 Letter from Rosa Solis-Rainey to

James R. Christensen regarding Production of

Complete Client File
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MORRIS LAW GROUP 801 S. RANCHO DR., STE. B4
LAS VEGAS. NV 89106

TELEPHONE; 702/4.74-9400
ATTORNEYS AT LAW FACSIMILE, 702/474-9422

WEBSITE; WWW.MORniSI-AWGnOUP.COM

May 4,2021

VIA EMAIL: jim@jchristensenlaw.com
James R. Christensen
601 S. 6th Street

LasVegas/NV 89101

Re: Eighth fudicial District Court Case No. A-16-738444-C

Dear Jim:

As discussed in our call, please consider this formal demand,

pursuant to NRS 7.055, that your client provide mine with the complete

client file in the above-referenced case. I understand Mr. Simon (or

someone on his behalf) previously provided portions of the file to Mr.

Edgeworth, however, the file provided is incomplete.

Among the items missing are all attachments to emails included in

the production, all correspondence, including email, with third-parties

regarding the settlement of the Viking and Lange Plumbing claims, other

drafts of the settlement agreements, communications regarding experts,

including the expert reports themselves, all research conducted and/or

research memos prepared on behalf of and paid by my clients.

NRS 7.055 is unambiguous that an attorney must, "upon demand and

payment of the fee due from the client, deliver to the client all papers,

documents, pleadings, and items of tangible personal property which

belong to or were prepared for thatdienC

If you have any questions or need additional information, please do

not hesitate to contact me.

Sincerely, '

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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EXHIBIT J
May 7, 2021 Letter from James R. Christensen to

Rosa Solis-Rainey regarding Production of

Edgeworth File
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James R. Christensen Esq.
601 S. 6th Street

LasVegas,NV89101
Ph: (702)272-0406 Fax: (702)272-0415

E-mail: jim@jchristensenlaw.com

May 7, 2021

Via E-Mail

Rosa Solis-Rainey
Morris Law Group
801 S. Rancho Drive Suite B4
LasVegas,NV89106
rsr@morrislawgroup.com

Re: Edgeworth v. Viking and related matters

Dear Ms. Soiis-Rainey:

Thank you for your letter of May 4, 2021, concerning the case file. At the
outset, it is doubtful that NRS 7.055 applies because the full fee has not yet
been paid, and recent motion practice may further delay payment of the
fee. That said, as discussed last year, my client is willing to reasonably
comply within the bounds of the law, which has been done.

There was a good deal of discussion last year regarding the impact of a
non-disclosure agreement (NDA) on providing discovery information and
expert reports which relied upon, cited to, and incorporated discovery
subject to the NDA. I was not involved in the file production last year, but I
have reviewed the correspondence. A fair reading seems to be that the
NDA counterparties reaffirmed their position, the Edgeworths and their
counsel declined to be bound by the NDA, and as a result it was agreed
that items subject to an NDA would not be provided. If there has been a
change in position on being bound by an NDA, or if you want to discuss the

prior agreement, please let me know.

1 I Page
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I need some clarification on the email attachment request. There are
thousands of emails. Many emails repeat the same attachment in a
forward or a reply. Further, it is believed that all the attachments have

been provided, although multiple copies have not been provided each as a
specific attachment to a particular email. For example, please review the
first motion for reconsideration filed this year and the opposition. Your
client argued that a stipulation and order attached to an email had been
intentionally withheld. Of course, the argument was groundless. The
stipulation and order had been signed by the court and was a matter of
public record and is in the file produced. At some point, reasonableness

and proportionality must be considered. Perhaps if you could provide some

specificity.

I will confer with my client on the research and draft settlement agreements

and get back to you.

Lastly, the file is quite large, I would be surprised if no gaps existed.

I will speak with my client and provide a further response per above next
week. Please clarify your N DA position and provide some specificity to the

attachment request.

I believe that covers all the areas raised. If not, please let me know.

Sincerely,

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, P.C.

/s/ Jc^vv^/ R. ^kn^f^^v

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN

JRC/dmc
ec: Client(s)

ge
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EXHIBIT K
Screen Print of Content of File Produced by

Simon to Edgeworth
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EXHIBIT L
Excerpts of 8/29/2018 Evidentiary Hearing
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Electronically Filed
5/8/2019 2:03 PW
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COD,

RTRAN
-|t'«<**l*

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
.)

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; )
< ) CASE#: A-16-738444-CAMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

LANGE PLUMBING, LLC, ETAL,

Defendants.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

)
) DEPT. X
)

Plaintiffs,

) CASE#: A-18-767242-C
)
) DEPT. X
)

vs.

DANIELS. SIMON, ETAL,

Defendants.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE TIERRA JONES, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 29, 2018

RECORDER'S TRANSCRIPT OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING - DAY 3

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff: ROBERT D. VANNAH, ESQ.
JOHN B.GREENE,ESQ.

For the Defendant:

RECORDED BY: VICTORIA BOYD, COURT RECORDER

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, ESQ.
PETER S. CHRISTIANSEN, ESQ.
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damages. Plus, I'm not a great biller. I don't have any billing software. I

don't know, you know - and so I mean, I didn't think to really bill that

way. That was just when I was putting together the substantial stuff.

Q Was there an office effort to bill on this file?

A No, sir. Not at that time.

Q To your knowledge, have any paralegals ever billed any time

in this file?

A No.

Q Any assistants?

A No.

Q Were you involved in the document management of this

case?

A Yes, sir, I was.

Q Do you have an understanding of the size of the file and the

documents produced?

A Yes. It was huge.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Your Honor, I'd like to bring in a

demonstrative piece of evidence -

THE COURT: Okay, which is?

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: - for the Court's -

MR. GREENE: It would be nice if we could have seen it first.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: It's going to be very technical and hard

to understand.

MR. GREENE: Generally/ before you show exhibits to

witnesses, you show them to either side, don't youl

-106-
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MR. VANNAH: No surprises.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Is this your witness, Mr. Greene?

MR. GREENE: Yeah. No, we have terrible way about each

other, apparently.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: I've noticed.

MR. VANNAH: I didn't know.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: [Indiscernible].

MR. VANNAH: I can understand that.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: It's not that.

MR.VANNAH: Whatever.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: I know.

THE COURT: And what is this, Mr. Christiansen that requires

four people to hold the door open? So, now I'm nervous.

MR. VANNAH: It's a big bulletin.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: It's some boxes, Your Honor.

MR.VANNAH: Oh my God.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: It's boxes.

MR. VANNAH: If somebody gets a bad back out of all this,

I'm not responsible.

THE COURT: I'm not liable either, Mr. Vannah.

MR.VANNAH: Oh my gosh. Are we filming this?

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: We're building a wall. It's like a

concert I went to once, a long time ago.

THE COURT: Oh, my goodness.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: While the folks are bringing in the

-107-
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BYMR.CHRISTENSEN:

Q Ms. Ferrel, while the folks are bringing in the boxes -

A Yes, sir.

Q - how many documents were produced in discovery in the

Edgeworth case?

A Just discovery alone were 122,458 pages.

Q Did you do any research into how many pieces of paper fit

into a standard bankers box?

A Yeah, 5,000 pieces of paper.

Q So, do the math for us and round up, if you would, how

many banker's boxes of paper was that equal to?

A It's 24.5, so 1 22,458 divided by 5,000 is 24 - approximately

24.5 boxes. So, 24.5 boxes just in the production.

Q So, that would be 25 boxes?

A Twenty-five boxes. Yes, sir.

Q Okay. We're not quite there yet. Did you have the lovely

opportunity to look at all those pieces of paper?

A Yes, sir.

Q Now, the boxes that we're, I guess, still bringing in, would

that include the pleadings that were filed in the case?

A No, sir.

23 || Q Motions?

24 || A No, sir.

25 || Q Depositions?

-108-
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A No, sir.

Q Exhibits attached to depositions?

A No, sir.

Q Research?

A No, sir.

Q And of course, the emails, we know were in a whole bunch of

additional boxes behind those?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. So that would be in addition to the 25 boxes?

A Yeah, that's just the discovery produced in the case.

Q I'd like to talk a little bit about the timesheets that were

submitted during the adjudication process.

A Okay.

Q I think we've been calling them superbills today.

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay.

A I understand what you're talking about.

Q All right. Those are exhibits 13, 14, and 15?

A Yes. I believe so, yes.

Q Did you have a role in the creation of those -

A Yes, sir.

22 || Q -timesheets?

23 || A Yes.

24 || Q What was your role?

25 || A Well, I did all of mine, and then I also helped with Mr.
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Simon's.

Q I think there was an allegation that you all sat around a

conference table and dreamed up the numbers contained in the

timesheets; is that true?

A No, sir. We did not do that.

MR. VANNAH: I'm going to object to that. I don't remember,

and I'm pretty good at reading, but I don't remember anybody saying

anybody sat around a conference table and dreamed up anything. Can

we just come up with crap like that with no background? Can we not do

that?

THE COURT: Well, I mean, I don't recall that, Mr.

Christiansen, anybody saying that.

MR. VANNAH: Yeah. If you want to show me where I ever

alleged in a pleading that you guys sat around the table holding hands,

praying, and coming up with a time out of the blue, I'd like to see that.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: I will provide it.

MR.VANNAH: Okay. Well we'll--

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Tomorrow.

MR. VANNAH: Maybe Mr. Simon can --

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: I didn't anticipate your standing up and

contradicting that, but we'll give it to him.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: We'll provide it.

24 || THE COURT: Okay.

25 || MR.VANNAH: All right.
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BYMR.CHRISTIANSEN:

Q So, what went into your timesheets?

A What went into my - the superbill timesheets?

Q Correct.

A So, basically, we billed -- so, I guess you could kind of split it

up into two things. From September 19th, so like September 20th, I think

it is, through when we stopped working on the case, which mine is

sometime in January 2018. That was all hours that we were working on

the case. Everything before that - and I'm just talking about mine. I

don't know if I clarified that. All of mine before that, we went back to

May of - I didn't start working the case until May, until January, except

for that one December 20th, 2016 date. In January from that point to

September 19th, all of those bills were emails, and telephone calls, and

downloads - WIZnet downloads, that I did that I had not billed for

previously. And -

Q Was that a time consuming process?

A Yes, sir. I had to go through all of the emails.

THE COURT: Okay. I'm sorry, Mr. Christiansen. I have a

question. So, your bills, in this superbill --

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: - everything from January of 2017 to

September 19th of 2017, is for emails, telephone calls, and WIZnet

23 || downloads that you hadn't previously billed for?

24 || THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

25 || THE COURT: Okay. And that's what's included in this
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superbill?

THE WITNESS: Yeah. And I believe if you look at mine,

that's all that's in there are telephone calls for my cell phone -

THE COURT: Okay.

THE WITNESS: - and WIZnet downloads, and also emails.

THE COURT: But from September 20th to January 2018,

that's the hours you worked on this case?

THE WITNESS: Well, that's the hours I worked on this case,

including - but I also incorporated in my downloads, also my emails,

and my telephone calls in there, as well.

THE COURT: So, that's in that calculation -

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am.

THE COURT: -onthesuperbitl? Okay.

BYMR.CHRISTIANSEN:

Q Do the timesheets capture all the work?

A No. So, thetimesheets - when we had to go back and do it

for this adjudication process, we had to show - because it's my

understanding we had to show the Court how much work we did on the

file, and so we went back, and we only put entries on there that we could

support with documentation.

So, that's why the emails were added, that's why the cell phone

records were added, and that's also why the WIZnet filings were added,

as well. And so, basically - and because we had a hard document. If we

24 || didn't have a hard document, we didn't capture it on the bill. We didn't

25 || put it on there. Any discussions with Mr. Simon that I had, you know, 10
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Q Or 9/15?

A Or 9/15, yes, sir.

Q Okay. But you weren't in the habit of ignoring WIZnet filings

on the case?

A I could not ignore WIZnet filings, that is correct.

Q Okay. And on the entries that describe emails, those have all

been produced, right?

A Yes.

Q Anybody can go look them up themselves and confirm that

they occurred?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. All right. Thank you.

A Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Vannah, do you have any recross?

MR.VANNAH: No.

THE COURT: No. Okay. This witness may be excused. Ms.

Ferrell, thank you very much for being here.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Mr. Christiansen, and I hate to do this to you

guys, but I'm going to ask you to put Mr. Simon up today in the interest

in making sure we finish tomorrow.

MR. CHRISTENSEN: We can get started.

THE COURT: I mean -

MR. VANNAH: Judge, can we have a two-minute bathroom

break?
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MR. VANNAH: Thank you. Your Honor.

THE COURT: Thank you.

[Proceedings concluded at 4:29 p.m.]

ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio-visual recording of the proceeding in the above entitled case to the

best of my ability.

I")

Maukele Transcribers, LLC

Jessica B. Cahill, Transcriber, CER/CET-708
25
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EXHIBIT M
Excerpts from Plaintiffs' Opposition to

Edgeworth Defendants' Special Anti-SLAPP

Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs' Amended

Complaint Pursuant to NRS 41.637
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OPPS
PETER S. CHRISTIANSEN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5254
KENDELEE L. WORKS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9611
pete@christiansenlaw.com

CHRISTIANSEN LAW OFFICES
810 South Casino Center Blvd., Suite 104
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 240-7979
Attorney for Plaintiffs

Electronically Filed
9/10/2020 8:32 PM
Steven D. Grlerson
CLERK OF THE COU.

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION;
DANIEL S. SIMON;

Plaintiffs,

vs.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC; BRIAN
EDGEWORTH AND ANGELA
EDGEWORTH, INDIVIDUALLY, AS
HUSBAND AND WIFE; ROBERT DARBY
VANNAH, ESQ.; JOHN BUCHANAN
GREENE, ESQ.; and ROBERT D.
VANNAH, CHTD. d/b/a VANNAH &
VANNAH, and DOES I through V and ROE
CORPORATIONS VI through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASENO.:A-19-807433-C
DEFT NO.: XXIV

HEARING DATE: OCTOBER 1,2020
HEAMNG TIME: 9:00 A.M.

PLAINTIFFS' OPPOSITION TO
EDGEWORTH DEFENDANTS'

SPECIAL ANTI-SLAPP MOTION TO
DISMISS PLAINTIFFS' AMENDED

COMPLAINT PURSUANT
TO NRS 41.637

The Plaintiffs, by and through undersigned counsel, hereby submit their Opposition to the

Edgeworth Defendants' Special Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs' Amended Complaint Pursuant to

NRS 41.637.'

'During the hearing on August 13,2020, the Court ordered all matters off calendar and issued a new briefing schedule

for the parties to file the appropriate motions, oppositions and replies addressing Plaintiffs' Amended Complaint.

Case Number: A-19-807433-C
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Edgeworths did not want this then why did they sue Simon for conversion? Why oppose prompt

adjudication of the lien based on the frivolous conversion complaint? Why ask for all of the

money in the conversion suit when they all admitted they always knew they owed Simon money?

Why make up a story about an express oral contract? Why make up stories about theft, blackmail

and conversion? Why appeal the adjudication order? Why testify under oath that that you sued

Simon for conversion to punish him for stealing, converting their money? Why did the Vannah

attorneys place their stated subjective beliefs of conversion over the objective conclusion that

conversion did not exist under the facts of this case. See, Declaration of James Christensen,

attached hereto as Exhibit 11.

It was Simon that did not want any of this. He wanted to get paid a fair fee for the work

actually performed. He was owed money. He did what is encouraged by the State Bar of Nevada

- file a statutory lien. Despite being fired, Simon still protected the client's interests, for which

Judge Jones applauded him. See, Exhibit 2 at 19:19-20:1. Simon simply requested prompt

adjudication of his lawful lien and fought for it over Defendants objection. Simon presented

experts to support his lien and his conduct. See, ^24 of Simon Amended Complaint.

Simon did not file a notice of appeal until Defendants forced his hand by appealing first.

The disputed funds remain held in trust not because Simon unilaterally refuses to release the

money, but because the Court ordered that the money should not be distributed pending appeal.

Simon encouraged pursuit of a slam dunk multi-million dollar claim against the plumber for

attorney's fees and costs, which the Edgeworths abandoned in their zeal to punish Simon.

The Edgeworths are simply not the victims they have been incredibly portraying. After

all, they have admittedly been made more than whole with the receipt of nearly $4 million (for a

$500,000 property damage claim).Theh" greed and the relentless quest to avoid paying their

11
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EXHIBIT N
Excerpts from Plaintiffs' Opposition to

Defendants Robert Darby Vannah, Esq., John

Buchanan Greene, Esq., and Robert D. Vannah,

Chtd. d/b/a Vannah & Vannah's Motion to

Dismiss Plaintiffs' Amended Complaint
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OPPS
PETER S. CHRISTIANSEN, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 5254
KENDELEE L. WORKS, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 9611
pete@christiansenlaw.com
CHRISTIANSEN LAW OFFICES
810 South Casino Center Blvd., Suite 104
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
Telephone: (702) 240-7979
Attorneys for Plaintiffs

Electronically Filed
9/10/20208:41 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COU.

'.^ lA.k***

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION;
DANIEL S. SIMON;

Plaintiffs,

vs.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC; BRIAN
EDGEWORTH AND ANGELA
EDGEWORTH, INDIVIDUALLY, AS
HUSBAND AND WIFE; ROBERT DARBY
VANNAH, ESQ.; JOHN BUCHANAN
GREENE, ESQ.; and ROBERT D.
VANNAH, CHTD. d/b/a VANNAH &
VANNAH, and DOES I through V and ROE
CORPORATIONS VI through X, inclusive,

Defendants.

CASENO.:A-19-807433-C
DEPTNO.:XXIV

HEARING DATE: OCTOBER 1,2020
HEARING TIME: 9:00 A.M.

PLAINTIFFS' OPPOSITION TO
DEFENDANTS ROBERT DARBY

VANNAH. ESQ.. JOHN BUCHANAN
GREENE. ESQ.. and ROBERT D.

VANNAH. CHTD. d/b/a VANNAH &
VANNAH'S MOTION TO DISMISS

PLAINTIFFS' AMENDED
COMPLAINT

The Plaintiffs, by and through undersigned counsel, hereby submit their Opposition to the

instant Motion to Dismiss Plaintiffs' Amended Complaint and Motion in the Alternative for a

More Definite Statement.' This Opposition is made and based on all the pleadings and papers on

'During the hearing on August 13, 2020, the Court ordered all matters off calendar and issued a new briefing schedule
for the parties to file the appropriate motions, oppositions and replies addressing Plaintiffs' Amended Complaint.

Case Number: A-19-807433-C
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Motion to Release Funds at 6:7-9, attached hereto as Exhibit 33. On December 31, 2018, Mr.

James Christensen sent a letter again asking Vannah and Greene to stop the false accusations of

theft and conversion, pointing out that the motion for an order to release funds repeats the

conversion claim. See, December 31, 2018 Letter, attached hereto as Exhibit 34. The motion was

denied because the Vannah/Edgeworth team had already appealed the adjudication order to the

Nevada Supreme Court. Simon also filed a writ petition challenging the Court's decision to award

less than the full amount of the lien.

Only the disputed funds remain in the special trust account. Simon is following the District

Court order to keep the disputed funds safe pending appeal. Yet, the Vannah/Edgeworth team

continue to argue conversion and maintain the unethical lawyer theme in all of their briefing,

including those to the Nevada Supreme Court. Defendants' conduct extends well beyond the mere

filing of the complaint. See, ^)35-42 of Amended Complaint.

III. ARGUMENT

Defendants seek dismissal erroneously contending that: (1) the common law litigation

privilege bars the claims; (2) the claims are barred by Nevada's anti-SLAPP statute; and (3) the

claims are premature and not ripe. Defendants motion is without merit because neither the

litigation privilege nor the anti-SLAPP statute insulates a litigant from liability for bringing false

claims made in bad faith. The court in the underlying action already determined Defendants did

not act in good faith and an appeal does not impact the finality of that decision for purposes of

issue preclusion.

A. STANDARD OF REVIEW

The standard of review for dismissal under NRCP 12(b)(5) is rigorous, as the court must

construe the pleading liberally and draw every fair inference in favor of the nonmoving party.
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EXHIBIT 0
May 11, 2021 Email from Rosa-Solis Rainey to

Jim Christensen in Response to his letter dated

5/7/2021
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Rosa Solis-Rainey

From: Rosa Solis-Rainey

Sent: Tuesday, May 11, 2021 10:31 AM
To: jim@jchristensenlaw.com'

Cc: Steve Morris

Subject: Edgeworth Matter - Response to your letter dated 5/7/21

Jim:

I am in receipt of your response dated May 7, 2021. As I mentioned when we spoke and in my letter, Mr. Edgeworth

was provided a part of his file but the file was by no means complete. The excuses raised in your letter for not producing
the complete file are ones that were discussed ad nauseam in 2020, and since the files were ultimately produced to Mr.

Edgeworth, were presumably abandoned or resolved. I do not see any benefit to either of our clients in rehashing those

arguments. This includes the fees outstanding, which you know your client is fully secured for given the $2M+ still held,
essentially under his control.

Your letter references an NDA, but one is not included either in your letter or in the 2020 exchanges your letter directs

me to. In either case, Ms. Lee properly responded to that issue when she reminded the sender that the Edgeworths are

already parties to the confidentiality provisions, and confidentiality was therefore not an excuse for withholding the file.
My position on that excuse for withholding the file is the same. You're welcome to send me a copy of the NDA you
referenced, but I don't see that as a legitimate obstacle to avoid production. Point of fact, you produced the file

(incomplete as it was) to Mr. Edgeworth without further signatures on the protective order, thus confirming that the
confidentiality argument was resolved to everyones satisfaction.

In any event, the Edgeworths are not seeking tax returns or proprietary company information from Viking or Lange,

though I do believe it should be preserved. To the extent confidentiality is your client's excuse for withholding any part
of the file, he should schedule the documents withheld on a log and deposit that portion of the file with the Court so
that we can adequately challenge the propriety of him withholding those documents. Note that the email exchanges
from last year indicate Mr. Christianssen said he would deposit the challenged portions of the file with the Court last
year, but there is no indication in the record the deposit was made.

With respect to your request for clarification, I expect that all email exchanges pertaining to the litigation would be
produced in their complete form, including attachments. That is not difficult task if the files were properly maintained,
and the complete email with attachments is what would have been captured if you transferred the email onto the
production drive from the custodians' email (i.e., it takes more work to remove attachments). As I told you on the

phone, the representation in 2020 was that the complete file being produced would not include the strictly internal
emails, and the Edgeworths accepted that for the time being. I did not raise internal email among the "missing" portions

of the file because of that prior agreement, though I expect that your client will honor his obligation to preserve that
internal email along with all other communications, as they may be discoverable in the subsequent litigation he
commenced.

With respect to the settlement agreements, the only drafts I am aware your clients produced regarding the Viking
settlement are the two drafts produced on November 30, 2017 and the copy ultimately signed. With respect to the
Lange settlement, I am aware of a draft sent in early December 2017, which appears to be the draft ultimately signed.
No email regarding the settlement discussions was produced.

Unrelated to the file but an open item nonetheless, you said you would get back to me regarding your client's position
on transferring the money into our Trust Account, and have not yet done so. Please provide me a response on that

issue. Also, you mentioned that the writ somehow left open the question of the quantum meruit period. Note that on
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page 4 of the Supreme Court's Order on the appeal, it specifically affirmed the quantum meruit period as following the
constructive discharge of November 29. Attempts to enlarge that period now are barred by the law of the case, so the

only open question is the reasonable value of the November 30, 2017 forward services. I do not believe you can

reasonably claim that is the $2M+ your client is tying up by refusing the release the funds.

If you still have questions, please contact me. I would prefer to resolve the issue promptly and without judicial
intervention, but if that is not possible, we will proceed with a motion.

Rosa Solis-Rainey

MORRIS LAW GROUP
801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste B4

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89106
(702) 474-9400 (Main)
(702) 759-8321 (Direct)
(702) 474-9422 (Fax)
rsr@morrislawgroup.cQm

www.morrislawgroup.com

This e-mail is sent by a law firm and contains information that may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the
intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and notify us immediately.
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EXHIBIT P
May 22, 2020 Email from Kendelee Works to

Patricia Lee re Edgeworths' Client File
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Edgeworth. Otherwise, please have it mailed via carrier to Mr. Edgeworth and

send us the bill for such delivery. Thank you.

Best regards,

From; Kendelee Works [mailto:kworks@christiansenlaw.com]

Sent: Friday, May 22, 2020 3:40 PM
To: Patricia Lee <PLee@hutchlegal.com>

Cc: PeterS. Christiansen <pete@)christiansentaw.com>; Jonathan Grain <jcrain@christiansenlaw.com>

Subject: Re: Simon v. Edgeworth et al: underlying client file

The file is ready for pick-up by the Edgeworth's. Please sign and return the Acknowledgment
sent this morning prior to having the file picked up so that we may release it without any
concerns for our respective clients. The file can be picked up any time before 5:00 p.m. at 810 S.
Casino Center Blvd, Las Vegas, Nevada 89101.

Please note that Simon Law has retained internal emails based on relevancy, work product
privilege and proportionality. Additionally, at the request of Mr. Parker, the Lange Plumbing
Tax Returns are not being produced. If you have additional concerns, you may reach me on my
cell anytime: (702) 672-8756.

On May 22, 2020, at 10:28 AM, Patricia Lee <PLee(3)hutchleeal.com> wrote:

I'm not refusing anything. I'm asking you to please produce my

clients' file to them as requested over a month ago. Also, as you

know, Lisa is not yet counsel of record on this matter so I'm not sure

why you need her signature.

So, to be clear, you will produce the entirety of my clients' legal file

today, if I sign the protective order? Alternatively, I would expect

that you could produce the non-"confidential" portions of their file

without any issues, either way. Thanks!

Best regards,

From: Kendetee Works [mailto:kworks(5)christiansenlaw.com]

Sent: Friday, May 22, 2020 10:15 AM
To: Patricia Lee <PLee@Jiutchlegal.com>

Cc: Peter S. Christiansen <pete@christiansenlaw.com>; Jonathan Grain

<icrain@)christiansenlaw,com>

Subject: Re: Simon v. Edgeworth et al: underlying client file
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JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 003861 
601 S. 6th Street 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
(702) 272-0406 
jim@jchristensenlaw.com 
Attorney for Daniel S. Simon 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

  
EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, and 
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC 

 

  Plaintiffs, 
 
 vs. 
 
LANGE PLUMBING, LLC; THE 
VIKING CORPORATION, a Michigan 
corporation; SUPPLY NETWORK, 
INC., dba VIKING SUPPLYNET, a 
Michigan Corporation; and DOES 1 
through 5 and ROE entities 6 through 
10; 
 
  Defendants. 

 Case No.: A-16-738444-C 
 Dept. No.: 10 
 
OPPOSITION TO EDGEWORTHS’ 
MOTION FOR ORDER RELEASING 
CLIENT FUNDS AND REQUIRING 
PRODUCTION OF FILE 
  
 Hearing date: 5.27.21 
 Hearing time: 9:30 a.m. 
  
 

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;  
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC 

 CONSOLIDATED WITH 

 
  Plaintiffs, 
 
 vs. 
 
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW 
OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A 
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION; 
DOES 1 through 10; and, ROE 
entities 1 through 10; 
 
  Defendants. 

 Case No.: A-18-767242-C 
 Dept. No.: 10 
  
 
  
  
 

Case Number: A-16-738444-C

Electronically Filed
5/20/2021 11:21 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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I. Preface 

 Years ago, the Edgeworths tried to wear the mantle of an aggrieved 

client.  The act has worn thin after the finding that the Edgeworths pursued 

frivolous litigation against Simon was affirmed, after their courtroom 

admission that they frivolously sued to punish Simon, and after they 

received a windfall of $4,000,000.00 from Simon’s efforts.  Unfortunately, 

the barrage of baseless rhetoric from the Edgeworths continues as they 

throw whatever they can think up against the wall in their unending search 

for a post hoc excuse for their sanctioned conduct. 

II. Introduction 

 The Edgeworths seek what they term as the “complete” (emphasis in 

original) file pursuant to NRS 7.055(2).  The problem for the Edgeworths is 

that NRS 7.055 does not apply on its face because Simon has not yet been 

paid.  NRS 7.055(1).  That said, in 2020 Simon voluntarily provided as 

much of the file as could be agreed upon in the face of the binding non-

disclosure agreement (NDA), and other practical and legal concerns. 

The Edgeworths did not raise the file issue after deliberate and 

collaborative discussion in 2020 or 2021.  Instead, in their rush to create 

another dispute, new Edgeworth counsel made direct contact with Simon in 

P000324
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an express violation of NRPC 4.21 (Mot., at Ex. C,), and insisted on an 

immediate response to their demands - without any demonstration of what 

the rush was all about or how undue prejudice could result if their latest 

demands were not complied with immediately. 

Simon is willing to act collaboratively on file transfer, but the 

Edgeworths need to recognize there are legal and practical issues at play.  

For example, things might go smoother if the Edgeworths and counsel 

would sign Exhibit A to the NDA, as requested in 2020, and provide a 

rationale on how disclosure today would comply with the NDA.  The fact 

that they refused to sign in 2020, and now act as if there is no NDA (Mot., 

at 4:18-19) establishes that Simon was right to be concerned.  After all, as 

things stand now, Simon is on the hook under the NDA if the Edgeworths 

or their agents violate the NDA. 

In their second motion to release funds from the trust account the 

Edgeworths try to avoid the reality that Simon has filed a counter motion 

and that the money held in trust continues to be in dispute.  The Simon 

position is not unreasonable, it is supported by the pleadings, sound 

 
1 NRPC 4.2 does not have an efficiency exception.  Compare, NRPC 4.2 
with Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶7. 
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argument and by expert Will Kemp.  Simon’s position may not be cavalierly 

dismissed out of hand. 

As to the transfer of the trust account, Simon has already stated that 

he has no objection to transfer if the Edgeworths state that they will 

abandon any claim of prejudice that can result from the fact they will no 

longer earn interest on the money held in trust and that they agree counsel 

will not release any money that is in dispute.  Simon, through counsel, 

continues to work on this issue, though admittedly not at the speed 

demanded by new Edgeworth counsel. 

III. The File 

 The Edgeworths ask this court to order Simon to produce the 

complete file pursuant to NRS 7.055. NRS 7.055(1) states: 

1. An attorney who has been discharged by his or her client shall, 
upon demand and payment of the fee due from the client, 
immediately deliver to the client all papers, documents, pleadings and 
items of tangible personal property which belong to or were prepared 
for that client. (Emphasis added.)   

 
In the motion seeking the file, the Edgeworths admit Simon has not been 

paid and that certain sums continue to be disputed by the Edgeworths.  

Accordingly NRS 7.055 does not apply on its face. 
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 Even though the law is solidly on Simon’s side and Simon can assert 

a retaining lien over the complete file, Simon has cooperated to the extent 

possible.  For example, Simon provided tangible items to Vannah when 

asked in 2019.  (Mot., at Ex. F.) 

 In May of 2020 when a different Edgeworth counsel requested the file 

under NRS 7.055, Simon promptly provided the NDA. (Mot., at G.)  

Although the NDA was attached to the email found at Exhibit G to the 

motion, it was not attached as an exhibit to the motion.  The NDA is 

attached hereto at Exhibit 1. 

 The NDA is quite restrictive.  Under §7 of the NDA confidential 

information may only be viewed by a limited pool of people, for limited 

reasons.  (Ex. 1, at 9-10.)  To view confidential information per §7 of the 

NDA, a person must sign an “Acknowledgement and Agreement to be 

Bound” attached to the NDA as Exhibit A.  (Ibid.)  Even counsel must sign.  

(See, e.g., Ex. 1, at 10:5-11.)  The NDA survives the final disposition of the 

case per §13 of the NDA. (Ex. 1, at 13-14.) 

 Instead of simply signing Exhibit A, the Edgeworths cherry pick and 

highlight selected lines from emails sent in the spring of 2020.  For 

example, Simon agreed to deposit confidential items with the court if a 
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motion was filed per 7.055(3).  (Compare, Ex. 2 at page 7 of the email 

string ending May 27, & Mot., at 3:22-24.) 

 Also, and more importantly, the Edgeworths completely ignore the 

impact of the limiting language contained in §7 of the NDA which states 

that the confidential material may only be provided to those: 

“to whom disclosure is reasonably necessary for this litigation 
and who have signed the “Acknowledgement and Agreement to be 
Bound” (Exhibit A).”  (Ex. 1 at 10.)  (Emphasis added.) 

 
The case against Viking and Lange is over, thus there can be no disclosure 

which is “reasonably necessary for the litigation”.  The fact the litigation is 

done which makes disclosure impossible under the NDA.  The Edgeworths 

did not justify their demand considering the limiting language of the NDA. 

 There is also a practical issue.  Seemingly, the Edgeworths are 

demanding production of every attachment to every email sent, no matter 

whether the attachment occurs multiple times in a string, if the same 

attachment was sent multiple times in different emails, or if the attachment 

was already provided.  The request harkens back to the first Edgeworth 

motion for reconsideration in which the Edgeworths frivolously argued that 

a stipulation had been intentionally withheld, when in fact the stipulation 

had been signed by the court, was filed, and was a matter of public record.  

(1st Mot. Recon., at 11:16-13:13 & Opp., at 12:6-14:9.)  Simon does not 
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believe there is any rule that requires production of multiple copies of file 

documents, and the Edgeworths did not provide any authority that a 

document must be copied and produced multiple times.  That said, Simon 

offered to work with new counsel if there was a specific email or area of 

concern (Mot., at Ex. J), instead of taking a collaborative approach a 

motion was filed.   

 The disorganized and indecipherable claim is new.  (Declaration of 

counsel.)  Further, the claim is vague and unsupported.  Again, if a specific 

question or area is identified, Simon is willing to work with any reasonable 

request.  At the current time, the Edgeworths have not disclosed with any 

specificity how they believe the file is not complete (other than the materials 

covered by the NDA).  In fact, the declaration attached to the motion states 

that the claim of incompleteness is based only on information and belief.  

(Declaration of Ms. Solis-Rainey at ¶5 & 6.)  Simon is willing to work with 

new counsel, however, Simon is not able to guess at what counsel believes 

is indecipherable, engage in make work by copying the same document 

many times, or waste further time and money simply because the 

Edgeworths are disgruntled with the $4 million dollars they have received to 

date. 
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 The “Finger for Edgeworth” comment is childish.  Finger is another 

slang term for a drive, just as “thumb” is.  In fact, you can buy “finger” 

drives on Amazon, shaped like index fingers.  The finger file contains a list 

of items on the drive sent to the Edgeworths.   

 The Edgeworths cannot prevail under NRS 7.055 and their motion 

must be denied.  However, Simon will continue to attempt to work with the 

Edgeworths and will respond to any reasonable request. 

IV. Disputed Funds must be Held in Trust 

 Disputed funds must be held in trust.  NRPC 1.15(e) states: 

(e) When in the course of representation a lawyer is in possession of 
funds or other property in which two or more persons (one of whom 
may be the lawyer) claim interests, the property shall be kept 
separate by the lawyer until the dispute is resolved. The lawyer shall 
promptly distribute all portions of the funds or other property as to 
which the interests are not in dispute. (Italics added.) 

 
 The funds held in trust are in dispute.  (Opp. & Countermotion to the 

2nd Mot. for Reconsideration.)  Simon’s position will not be restated here for 

brevity’s sake.  It is enough to state that Simon’s position is well based 

under the law, the pleadings, and the opinion of expert Will Kemp.  

Regardless, Simon will not dispute that the specific amount subject to 

withholding is the face amount of the lien.  If there is an overage it can be 

withdrawn. 
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 The funds remain in dispute until the dispute ends with a final order 

after the time to appeal has run.  Normally this is not a difficult concept.  

The Edgeworths have not provided this court with a legal basis upon which 

it can order disbursal of contested funds.  Therefore, the motion must be 

denied. 

 It appears the Edgeworths have finally dropped their fight against the 

sanction imposed upon them for frivolously suing Simon.  However, the 

sanction money is different from the disputed money held in trust and does 

not impact this motion.   

V. Trust Transfer 

 As Judge Allen Earl used to comment, “the devil is in the details”.  

Simon does not have an objection in principle to moving the money to 

movants’ trust account.  However, Simon does object to the notion that the 

Edgeworths have a right to immediately force a reversal of their own trust 

agreement without some thought and discussion. 

The motion must be denied, the Edgeworths have not provided a 

legal basis upon which this court can order that the agreement between the 

parties to deposit disputed money into a joint bank account can be set 

aside on their say so alone.  The parties entered into a bilateral agreement 
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regarding disposition of the trust money, a unilateral demand to end the 

agreement is not legally enforceable. 

VI. Conclusion 

 NRS 7.055 does not apply thus the motion must be denied.  Simon is 

willing to cooperate on production of the file, but will not violate an NDA, 

nor will Simon waste time on make work. 

 Disputed funds must be held in trust.  The Edgeworths did not 

provide authority upon which this court could order early disbursement of 

funds held in dispute.  Further, there is no undue prejudice because the 

disputed funds are earning interest.  Lastly, if the Edgeworths do not file 

another appeal, then the end of the trust is in sight anyway. 

 There is no legal ground upon which this court can repudiate the 

bilateral agreement to hold the disputed money in an interest-bearing 

account at the bank; therefore, the motion must be denied.  Nevertheless, 

there is no general objection to a transfer of the trust, even if there is no  
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rational reason to do so.  When the details are agreed upon and a new 

bilateral agreement is reached, the transfer will occur. 

DATED this   day of May 2021.  

  /s/ James R. Christensen  

   JAMES CHRISTENSEN, ESQ. 
 Nevada Bar No. 003861 
   601 S. 6th Street 
   Las Vegas, NV 89101 
  (702) 272-0406 
  (702) 272-0415 
  jim@jchristensenlaw.com 
  Attorney for Daniel S. Simon 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I CERTIFY SERVICE of the foregoing Opposition to Motion for 

Release of Funds and Production of File was made by electronic service 

(via Odyssey) this   day of May 2021, to all parties currently shown on 

the Court’s E-Service List. 

      /s/ Dawn Christensen   

an employee of  
 

  

20th

20th
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DECLARATION OF COUNSEL JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN 
 

1. I, JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, make this Declaration of my own 
personal knowledge and under the penalty of perjury pursuant to NRS 
53.045. 
  

2. I represent the Simon Defendant(s) in this matter.   
 

3. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶4:  I sent the 
letter, not Peter Christiansen. 
 

4. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶7:  I received 
the call, not Peter Christiansen.  I informed counsel that collaborative 
resolution of the dispute was made difficult when the Edgeworths and 
counsel frivolously sued Simon, did not respond to my December 2017 
offer to work collaboratively, made false statements regarding a so-called 
missing stipulation, and recently accused Simon of extortion when such a 
claim is made impossible by the law of the case.  I also mentioned that acts 
such as violating NRPC 4.2 do not help.  Counsel also leveled an 
accusation of ex parte contact with this Court, which was withdrawn after I 
read EDCR 7.74 to counsel. 
 

5. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶7 & 8:  I 
informed counsel that the Simon counter motion seeking a different 
valuation under quantum meruit could not simply be ignored because the 
counter motion was based on reasonable grounds, including case law, a 
reasonable interpretation of the Supreme Court’s orders and the 
declaration of Will Kemp.  I do not recall counsel raising a contingency fee 
or a flat fee argument.  However, even if made, the argument is a non 
sequitur.  The issue presented to the court is determination of a reasonable 
fee under quantum meruit based on the market approach. 
 

6. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶9:  We 
discussed the claim that the file produced in 2020 was incomplete.  I 
advised that I was not involved in the 2020 discussions.  I asked for 
specifics.  I did not receive specifics beyond the confidential document 
issue.  Counsel did not make the claim that parts of produced file was 
disorganized or indecipherable. 
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7. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶10:  During 
our call I asked what the sudden rush was and specifically asked for the 
rationale behind the short response window provided in counsel’s first 
letter.  I did not receive a meaningful response.  I do not agree with the 
negative implications which arise from the word “excuses”.  The NDA is 
quite clear and clearly applies.  Pretending the NDA does not exist 
needlessly extends this dispute without basis. 
 

I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 
 

Dated this  20th  day of May 2021. 
 
 

/s/ James R. Christensen  

James R. Christensen 
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INTRODUCTION

Simon's Tactics to Delay and Increase the Burden and Expense of
Litigation

Simon's Opposition gives with one hand what it takes with the other.

On the one hand, Simon acknowledges he "agreed" to transfer the funds into

the Morris Law Group Trust Account yet has done nothing to effectuate it.

Now, he questions even the Court's authority to change the "bilateral"

agreement for deposit of the subject funds that Simon strong-armed his

clients into, despite previously telling another district court (former Judge

Jim Crockett) that the funds were being held on order of the Court {see Ex. M

to Motion for Order to Release Funds/File. Rather than address the

unreasonableness of maintaining that position given the changed nature of

the dispute and the completed appellate proceedings, Simon relies on the

obsolete initial dispute, without offering any authority to support not

transferring the funds in trust, as he recently agreed to do.

With respect to the Edgeworths' case file, Simon again obfuscates

rather than offer a solution, which is simple: produce the Edgeworths' file as

Nevada law requires since adequate security is in place. Ordering

production of the file is well within this Court's authority. Given Simon's

tactics of avoiding his legal obligations, it is no wonder this litigation is now

going into its fourth year.

A. THE CLIENTS' FUNDS SHOULD NOT BE IN SIMON'S

CONTROL

It is ironic that Simon now questions the Court's authority to permit

the transfer of funds because transfer would change what Simon calls the

"bilateral agreement" between the parties. Opp'n at 9:22-26. This is

especially true since Simon has been reporting to another district court that

"the Court ordered that the money should not be distributed pending appeal."

2
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See Ex. M to Motion, Excerpts of Simon's Opp'n to Edgeworths' Special Mot.

to Dismiss in Case No. A-19-807433-C at 11:20-21 (emphasis added); id at

27:22-23 ( ... Judge Jones ordered the funds remain in the account"

(emphasis added)); see also Ex. N, Excerpts of Simon's Opp'n to Vannah's

NRCP 12(b)(5) Mot. to Dismiss at 13:9-10 {"Simon is following the District

Court order to keep the disputed funds safe .. ."). The "bilateral" agreement

that Simon is presumably referring to is the joint Special Trust Account

established when he fought to have some control over the "disputed funds."

Simon does not have a duty to "protect funds" as he thoughtlessly claims:

the "disputed funds" would have been just as secure in Vannah's Trust

Account, and Simon's interests would have been adequately protected, but

he would not agree to that, and the Special Trust Account was established to

disburse funds that are in excess of the amount needed to secure his lien.

Despite expressing a willingness to work "collaboratively," Simon has

declined to work with the Edgeworths' counsel, as demonstrated below:

May 3

May 4

May 4

May 11

May 13

May 13

Request to transfer funds and
release uncontested portions.

Telephone discussion, explained
"rush" was to get the matter

before the court if agreement still

could not be reached.

Edgeworths' counsel agreed to

wait till end of week for response

Follow-up request sent to

counsel.

Edgeworths' Motion re Release of

Funds/File filed
After motion filed, letter from
Simon's counsel received saying

"he did not see a fundamental

problem with moving contested

Ex. C to Motion

to Release

Funds/File.

Solis-Rainey
Decl. ISO Motion

at^7

See Ex. Q

Ex. 0 to Motion

Attached hereto

as Ex. Q.
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May 13

May 18

funds ..." and would "contact

[Edgeworths' counsel] next week
on the issue."

Response to Simon, confirming
all bank needed for transfer was

signed letter authorizing it.

Follow-up email sent to Simon's

counsel with sample letter that

would satisfy bank

Attached hereto

as Ex. R

Attached hereto

as Ex. S

To date, nearly three weeks after Morris Law Group's initial request,

Simon has not responded with the letter that would enable transfer of the

trust funds. And although he flippantly says "if there is an average it can be

withdrawn," (Opp'n at 8:26-27) the reality is that given his delays and

positing a false issue about the Court's authority over the account, it is

unlikely anything can be done with the account until the Court orders him

to transfer it so disputed funds can be maintained in the Morris Law Group

Trust Account. The rest can be disbursed to the Edgeworths. This is not an

issue of protecting funds for his lien security: rather, Simon is just trying to

force the Edgeworths to pay him what he wants and give up their appeal

rights in this case and in the pending defamation case Simon filed that is not

before this Court. The Court should not permit him to hold the Edgeworths'

funds hostage any longer.

Simon's suggestion that the Court is without authority to resolve a

dispute about the "bilateral" agreement is meritless. Opp'n at 9:22-26.

Courts resolve such disputes daily; they are often required to adjudicate

competing claims about the meaning and scope of "bilateral agreements."

B. THE ENTIRE CLIENT FILE MUST BE RELEASED

1. Simon's "Retaining Lien" Does Not Immunize Him From

Producing the Edgeworths' Complete Case File.
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Judicial intervention is needed now to stop Simon's ever-increasing

gamesmanship with the Edgeworths' client file. Having presumably

abandoned his earlier claim that NRS 7.055 did not apply because he was

not a "discharged" lawyer, Simon is back to contending it does not apply

because he hasn't been paid. But Simon is more than adequately secured,

and that is all Nevada law requires. Morse v. Eighth Judicial District Court, 65

Nev. 275, 291,195 P.2d 199, 206-07 (1948) (recognizing that "a district court

should have no trouble in fixing a proper amount for bond or other security

and in passing on the sufficiency thereof."); Figliuzzi v. Eighth Judicial Dist.,

Ill Nev. 338,343, 890 P.2d 798, 801 (1995) (recognizing "substitute payment

or security" satisfies statute (citing Morse)).

2. The Non-Disclosure Agreement Does Not Excuse Production of

the File.

Simon should not be permitted to wield the non-disclosure agreement

(NDA) as a sword. The protective order, which has the NDA, as is typical,

was an agreement between "Plaintiffs on the one hand, and Viking

Defendants and Lange ... to prevent the unnecessary disclosure or

dissemination of such confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information."

NDA at 3. The Edgeworth entities are the "Parties" referenced, and are

bound by it. That issue was raised by Simon's counsel in 2020 and resolved.

Simon signed the NDA only as counsel to the Edgeworths. NDA at 14. The

NDA itself contemplates that a Court may be called upon for documents

subject to the NDA, and provides for notice to the other parties, which

Simon has given. See Ex. 2,5/22/20 at 9:40 a.m. Email from K. Works to

Patricia Lee.

Another evasive shift in Simon's NDA argument: in 2020 Simon

claimed that the "confidential" documents had not been destroyed as

provided in the NDA because issues remained open and thus the file was

P000376
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not closed. Ex. 2; 5/27/20 12:57 p.m. Email from P. Christiansen to P. Lee.

Now, in this Opposition he nonsensically suggests that portions of the file

could never be turned over because "case against Viking and Lange is over,

thus there can be no disclosure ..." Opp'n at 6:11-12. More importantly, this

shifting line of argument is an excuse for acting irresponsibly, as is evident

from the fact the Edgeworths confirmed to Simon's counsel that they were

not looking for confidential Viking or Lange Plumbing data. Motion Ex. 0,

at 1 ("the Edgeworths are not seeking tax returns or proprietary company

information from. Viking or Lange, though I do believe it should be

preserved"). The NDA and the concept of confidentiality simply do not

provide immunity for Simon to avoid the full production required by NRS

7.055.

3. The Alleged Burden of Production is of Simon's Own Making

and Does Not Excuse his Legal Duty to Produce the File.

The "burden" excuse offered by Simon should be rejected. Simon

claimed that he had already produced all email in the case for which his

firm billed. Mot. to Release Funds/File at 5; Ex. 0 to same at 197. And as

pointed out in the exchanges with his counsel, producing complete emails is

much easier than attempting to de-duplicate them. manually. Since Simon

has already gone through all the emails, all he has to do is place the

remaining .pst files onto a hard drive. NRS 7.055 does not allow a lawyer to

choose which portions of the file he must produce merely because the file

was maintained in a way that now makes it inconvenient for the lawyer to

produce it.

4. Simon's Other Excuses are also Wrong

As to his other excuses, Simon is flat wrong. Simon says that beyond

the NDA issue, the Edgeworths "have not disclosed with any specificity how

they believe the file is not complete." Opp'n at 13; but see, Ex. I to Mot. to

P000377



>£>

0

PH
!?I0
t̂
vn

<-N!
CM

c3 ^-
z ^
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Release Funds/File (providing a non-exhaustive list of missing items); and

Ex. 0 (providing the clarification requested by Simon's counsel as to the

file).

Simon's attempt to analogize the "Finger for Edgeworth" folder to a

thumb drive is interesting, but unhelpful because the file was not produced

on a thumb drive, or a "finger drive," but rather on a portable hard drive.

The content of that folder is also not included on the "list of items on the

drive sent to the Edgeworths." See Ex. T (snapshot of "Finger for Edgeworth"

folder content).

Simon's opposition now says that "Simon agreed to deposit

confidential items with the court if a motion was filed per 7.055(3)." Opp'n at

5-6. In support of that statement, Simon relies on an older portion of an

email thread where one of Pete Christiansen's colleagues said that, instead

of the later email in the thread where Mr. Christiansen abandons that

limitation. Compare 5/22/20 9:40 a.m. email from K. Works to P.Lee; to

5/27/20 2:37 p.m. email from P. Christiansen to P. Lee, both found in

Exhibit 2 to Plaintiff's Opposition (not presented in chronological order). The

May 27 exchanges between Mr. Christiansen and Ms. Lee were the last in

that thread and reflected the final agreement, as evidenced by the fact that a

portion of the file was produced soon after. Id. Simon's claim that emails

were cherry-picked is likewise false (Opp'n at 5:34); the email threads

concerning the back-and-forth in 2020 were excerpted from his own emails;

and Simon's entire exhibits on that point (in the order he offered them

previously) were also cited. See Mot. to Release Funds/File at 3:23. In fact,

Exhibit 2 to Simon's Opposition has the exact emails cited in the Motion, just

combined into one exhibit instead of three as Simon presented them

previously. The exhibits regarding this issue are also a good example of how
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the files were disorganized and often indecipherable, as the Edgeworths

point out in the Motion.

C. CONCLUSION

Simon acknowledges that the Special Trust Account balance is well in

excess of his exorbitant lien. That balance cannot be reasonably maintained

today in view of the law of the case. He is not entitled to be over-secured.

For the reasons set forth in the Motion and in this Reply, the Edgeworths

respectfully ask that the Court enter an order requiring the transfer of the

disputed settlement funds to the Morris Law Group trust account, to be held

pending further order of the Court concerning distribution. Simon has not

presented any credible reason as to why he should be permitted to hold

funds that are in excess of what is necessary to secure his lien until the Court

rules on the amount of the lien, as the Supreme Court has mandated.

The file requested by his former clients, who have been asking for the

complete file since November 2017, should be produced now.

MORRIS LAW GROUP

By: /s/ STEVE MORRIS
Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921
801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste. B4
Las Vegas/Nevada 89106

Attorneys for Defendants
Edgeworth Family Trust and
American Grating, LLC

8

P000379



us
0
en

& ^^ §

p^

CM
r^

1^
5 ^̂̂

0"3 ^
^x

<
^r LL

h-1 mo

0C/2

0

w^
s1
liy oi^
ec
U~l

000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b) and NEFCR 9, I certify that I am

an employee of MORRIS LAW GROUP, and that I caused the following to

be served via the Court's mandatory e-filing and service system to those

persons designated by the parties in the E-Service Master list for the above-

referenced matter: EDGEWORTHS' REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION

FOR ORDER RELEASING CLIENT FUNDS AND REQUIRING THE

PRODUCTION OF COMPLETE CLIENT FILE

DATED this 21st day of May, 2021.

By: /s/TRACIK.BAEZ
An employee of Morris Law Group

9
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EXHIBIT Q
May 13, 2021 Letter to Rosa Solis-Rainey from

James R. Christensen
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James R. Christensen Esq.
601 S. 6th Street

LasVegas,NV89101
Ph: (702)272-0406 Fax: (702)272-0415

E-mail: jim@jchristensenlaw.com

May 13,2021

Via E-Mail

Rosa Solis-Rainey
Morris Law Group
801 S. Rancho Drive Suite B4
LasVegas, NV 89106

Re: Edgeworth v. Viking and related matters

Dear Ms. Solis-Rainey:

Thank you for spending time on the phone with me on May 4 and for being
flexible on the deadline expressed in your May 3rd letter.

As discussed, while I understand the position taken in your letter and most
recent motion for reconsideration, it is not the only position. As explained
during our call and as further explained in the counter motion to adjudicate
the lien on remand, the state of the pleadings and the mandate can be

reasonably interpreted such that the court could find along the lines offered
by Will Kemp. In short, while you take the position the fees should be less,
we take the position the fees should be higher. The funds remain in

dispute.

a e
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However, as it appears clear that the court is confident in its current
findings and the amount of the fee absent further order from the Supreme
Court, I offered to move off our position and disburse funds per the court's
existing orders, with a downward adjustment for the amount charged by Mr.

dark (as opposed to his retainer). While you were resistant to moving off
your position during our call, please give it serious thought as a practical
solution. Any further appeal keeps the funds in dispute.

As discussed, while the details need to be addressed, I do not see a
fundamental problem with moving contested funds to your firm's trust
account. It must be noted that because the contested funds are being

moved from an interest-bearing account to an IOLTA account at your
clients' request, Simon will not be responsible for any alleged delay

claims/damages that would otherwise be offset by earned interest. I will
contact you next week on this issue.

Thank you for your consideration of the above.

Sincerely,

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, P.C.

/s/Jaw-e^-R. C^r\^t^^^

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN

JRC/dmc
ec: Client(s)

ge
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EXHIBIT R
May 13, 2021 Letter to James R. Christensen

from Rosa Solis-Rainey
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MORRIS LAW GROUP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

801 S. RANCHO DR., STE. B4.
LAS VEOAS, NV asios

TEl-EPHONE; 702/4'y4-9400
FACSlMll-E; 702/474-9422

WESBSEITE; WWW.MORRISLAWGKUUP.CUM

May 13,2021

VIA EMAIL: jim@jchriste.nsen.1,a\
James R. Christensen
601 S. 6th Street
LasVegas/NV 89101

Re: Eighth Judicial District Court Case No. A-16-738444-C

Dear Jim:

I am in receipt of your response/ which you emailed to me shortly after my office

filed the Motion for Order Releasing Client Funds and Requiring the Production of
Complete Client File. As I explained when we spoke on May 4th, the reason I requested

a quick response from you was so that if we could not resolve the issue, we could file a

timely motion and have the Court consider all issues in one proceeding.

While it was clear on May 4th that we would not reach agreement on

disbursement, I waited for a response until the end of the week as agreed/ in. hopes we

could resolve the transfer issue. Your offer to resolve the issue by accepting the Court's

figures was not without strings. I understood that offer was contingent on my clients

giving up their right to pursue the pending motion for reconsideration, and waiving all
appeals/ which was unacceptable.

Nonetheless/1 appreciate that your client is now willing to transfer the funds into

the Morris Law Group Trust account, which is also at Bank of Nevada. I understand

that the transfer requires nothing more than a letter from Mr. Vannah and a letter from

Mr. Simon authorizing the transfer. Given your client's contention that all funds are in

dispute/ we understand our obligation to maintain all funds in our Trust account

pending receipt of Order from the Court authorizing disbursement.

Please send me the letter from your client authorizing the transfer as soon as

possible. I look forward to working with you to get the transfer finalized. As always, if
you have any questions or need additional information/ please do not hesitate to contact

me.

Sincerely/

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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EXHIBIT S
May 18, 2021 Follow-up Email to

James R. Christensen with Sample Letter

P000386



Rosa Solis-Rainey

From: Rosa Solis-Rainey

Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:48 AM

To: 'jim@jchristensenlaw.com'

Subject: Edgeworth adv. Simon - Transfer of Funds

Attachments: 2021-05-18 Draft Letter to Bank of NV re Transfer Authorization.docx

Jim:

Following up on our exchange last week, and your agreement to transfer the funds, please provide me with a signed

letter authorizing the transfer. I understand from our banker that the signed letter from your side and Mr. Vannah is all

they need to effectuate the transfer, and that I may email the letters. For your convenience, attached is a draft listing

Mr. Simon as the signer on the account, but if I am mistaken and if you are the signer on the account, please change the

name.

This confirms that Morris Law Group agrees to hold all funds in our Trust account pending order from the court

regarding the disposition of the funds.

Best regards, /

Rosa Solis-Rainey

MORRIS LAW GROUP
801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste B4

LASVEGAS, NEVADA 89106

(702) 474-9400 (Main)
(702) 759-8321 (Direct)
(702) 474-9422 (Fax)
rsr@morrislawgroup.com

www.morrislawgroup.com

This e-mail is sent by a law firm and contains information that may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the

intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and notify us immediately.
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May 18,2021

Bank of Nevada
2700 West Sahara Avenue
Las Vegas/ NV 89102

Re: Edgeworth adv. Simon,

dark County Case Nos. A-16-738444-C and A-18-767242-C

Dear Sir or Madam:

This letter constitutes authorization to transfer all of the funds held in
the Joint Trust Account ending in 4141 into IVIorris Law Group's Trust
Account and to close the Joint Trust Account.

Sincerely,

Daniel S. Simon

ec: James Christensen

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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EXHIBIT T
Snapshot of "Finger for Edgeworth" Folder

Content
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MORRIS LAW GROUP 801 S. RANCHO DR.. STE. B4

L.AS VEGAS, NV 89106
TELEPHONE: 702/474-9400

ATTORNEYS AT LAW FACSIMILE: 702/474-9422
WEBSITE; WWW.MORRISLAWGROUP.COM

May 26, 2021

Kelley Blose
Bank of Nevada

2700 West Sahara Avenue

Las Vegas,NV 89102

Re: Edgeworth adv. Simon,
dark County Case Nos. A-16-738444-C and A-18-767242-C

Dear Kelley:

This letter confirms that Morris Law Group accepts the transfer from

the Joint Trust Account ending in 5642, referenced in the attached letter

from Mssrs. Simon and Vannah. Morris Law Group's (IOLTA) Trust

Account ends in 9568.

Your assistance in effectuating the transfer is greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, ET 
AL., 
 
                    Pla in tiffs , 
 
vs . 
 
DANIEL SIMON, ET AL., 
 
                    Defendants . 
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) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
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) 
) 
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) 
) 

 
 
  CASE#:  A-18-767242 
   
  COMBINED WITH 
  CASE#: A-16-738444-C 
 
  DEPT.  X 
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DISTRICT COURT J UDGE 
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For the  Pla in tiffs : STEVE L. MORRIS, ESQ. 

 
For the  Defendants : J AMES R. CHRISTENSEN, ESQ. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RECORDED BY:  VICTORIA BOYD, COURT RECORDER 

Case Number: A-16-738444-C

Electronically Filed
8/5/2021 11:42 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Las  Vegas , Nevada , Thursday, May 27, 2021 

 

[Case  ca lled  a t 9:25 a .m .] 

THE COURT:  We are  go ing  to  go  on  the  record  in  A738444, 

Edgeworth  Fam ily Trus t v. Lange  Plum bing .  This  case  is  a lso  

consolida ted  -- okay, I need  eve rybody on  BlueJ eans  to  m ute .  Okay.  

Also  consolida ted  with  the  Edgeworth  Fam ily Trus t v. Dan ie l S im on.   

May the  record  re flect we  a re  he re  for the  renewed m otion  to  

recons ider, as  well as  there  was  a  coun te rm otion  to  ad judica te  the  lien  

on  rem and.  I have  read  Pla in tiff' s  renewed m otion  to  recons ider the  

th ird  am ended  decis ion  and  order.  I have  a lso  read  the  oppos ition , as  

well as  the  counte rm otion .  And I have  read  the  rep ly in  regards  to  the  

m otion  to  recons ider.  And there ' s  a lso  a  m otion  for an  order re leas ing  

the  clien t funds , wh ich  we ' ll ge t to  second.   

So  le t' s  s ta rt w ith  the  renewed m otion  for recons idera tion .  

Pla in tiff, I have  read  everyth ing  tha t was  subm itted  by the  parties .  Do 

you  have  anyth ing  you  would  like  to  add  to  what you  previous ly 

subm itted? 

MR. MORRIS:  Yes , Your Honor.  I'm  Steve  Morris .  I know 

tha t you  jus t sa id  you 've  read  the  pape rs .  S till, however, I th ink it' s  

necessa ry to  -- fo r Mr. Edgeworth  to  m ake  a  record  here  of th is  hearing .   

We poin t ou t in  our papers , as  you 've  p robably recognized  

tha t the  th ird  am ended  orde r does  no t com ply with  the  Suprem e Court's  

m andate  tha t b rings  th is  case  back to  your court.  There  isn ' t in  the  th ird  

am ended  -- in  the  th ird  lien  order, there  isn ' t any bas is  o r explana tion  fo r 
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-- to  provide  a  bas is  for the  $200,000 in  quantum  m erit award  tha t you  

awarded  Mr. S im on  for pos t d ischa rge  work, and  I th ink tha t it' s  

necessa ry to  do  tha t.  We don ' t have  in  the  reco rd  -- we , o f course , have  

your decis ion , which  says , am ong o the r th ings , the  Court m us t es tab lish  

or de te rm ine  the  am ount of a  rea sonable  fee , bu t we  don ' t have  find ings  

from  you or, as  the  Suprem e Court sa id , an  exp lana tion  to  support the  

$200,000 as  reasonable  for work tha t was  done  pos t d ischa rge . 

The  work tha t was  done  pos t d ischarge  in  your orde r is  no t 

iden tified , and  there  is  no  s ta tem ent by you  or any opin ion  by you  of the  

va lue  of tha t work tha t bene fited  the  Edgeworths .  So  we don ' t have  -- 

go ing  back to  the  Suprem e Court' s  words , we  don ' t have  from  you, in  

your th ird  orde r, an  explana tion  of the  reasonableness  of the  $200,000 

tha t you  ordered .   

Now you 're  required  to  m ake  an  explana tion  of tha t, and  the  

Court a lso  sa id , tha t in  do ing  so  -- and  I know tha t you  sa id  in  your o rder 

tha t you  cons idered  the  Brunze ll factors , bu t you  d idn ' t po in t ou t, the  

Suprem e Court observed , what it is  in  the  Brunze ll factors  tha t you  found 

and  applied  to  the  pos t-d ischarge  work tha t would  support your $200,000 

award . 

In  the  oppos ition  to  th is  m otion , which , Your Honor, you  a lso  

say you 've  read , the  oppos ition  says  there 's  m ore  than  what Mr. S im on 

described  in  h is  super b ill a s  the  work he  d id  pos t d ischarge  and  the  

oppos ition , however, doesn ' t cite  anyth ing .  It jus t s im ply says  subs tance  

-- we  had  a  five  day hearing , and  tha t five  day hearing  covered  a  lo t o f 

g round and  had  a  lo t o f in form ation  in  it.   
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The  poin t is , and  it' s  illus tra ted  by Exhib it LL to  our m otion  

for recons idera tion , tha t's  the  co lor coded  chart tha t b reaks  down by 

about a  job  -- it' s  about a  job  descrip tion , the  tim e  tha t was  spent by Mr. 

S im on and  h is  associa te , Ashley Ferre l, in  wrapping  up , o r in  m y words , 

clos ing  out the  file  o f h is  represen ta tion  in  th is  case .  He 's  been  

com pensa ted  for the  work tha t he  d id , tha t you  found im press ive , and  

we 're  no t d ispu ting  tha t.  What we ' re  d isputing  and  what we 're  asking  

you  to  cons ider is  d id  he  work 71 -- he  and  h is  associa te  work 71.10 

hours  -- po in t 1 hours .  And it describes , la rge ly, garden  va rie ty close  ou t 

work to  conclude  h is  represen ta tion  of the  Edgeworths  in  th is  case . 

Tha t super b ill was  the  on ly record  we  have  of S im on 's  pos t 

d ischarge  work, and  as  you  poin ted  ou t a t one  tim e , it m ay be  -- it m ay 

be  even  ques tionab le  a t tha t.  But a t the  very m os t, if you  cred it 

everyth ing  tha t he  says  on  tha t b ill -- and , by the  way, g ive  h im  cred it fo r 

71.10 hours , you  would  be  com pensa ting  h im  a t a lm os t $3,000 an  hour if 

you  were  to  confirm  th is  $200,000 quantum  m eruit award .   

We say tha t's  unreasonable , and  we  po in t to , in  s aying  tha t 

in  our papers , tha t our be lie f is , and  we  ask you  to  cons ider it, tha t the  

work he  d id  should  no t be  va lued  any m ore  than  -- and  we  describe  it a t 

m os t, and  it' s  s till generous  -- a t the  ra te  of which  he  was  com pensa ted  

prior to  pos t d ischa rge , because  the  work tha t you  found tha t jus tified  

what he  was  cla im ing , and  you  ordered  for p revious  charged  work, is  no t 

the  work tha t he  d id  pos t d ischarge .  Pos t d ischa rge  is  te lephone  ca lls , 

adm inis tra tion , read ing  em ails , and  so  on  to  wrap  up  h is  participa tion  in  

the  case .  It' s  jus t rou tine , as  I say, close  ou t adm inis tra tive  work. 
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In  addition , the  th ird  am ended  order has  an  e rror in  it, which  

we  describe  a s  a  scrivener' s  e rro r for $71,594.93 in  cos ts  tha t, as  you  

acknowledged  in  your order on  page  18, tha t had  a lready been  pa id .  The  

Edgeworths  had  pa id  those .  Those  cos ts  should  no t have  been  added  

back in to  th is  o rder ad judica ting  the  lien . 

So , Your Honor, to  sum m arize  th is , I th ink we can  say tha t a t 

the  very m os t, cons idering  the  work tha t was  done , the  characte r o f tha t 

work, and  the  absence  of find ings  to  show tha t it had  had  som e 

subs tance  as  opposed  to  jus t rou tine  clean-up  work to  ge t ou t o f the  case  

and  close  h is  file  on  it, $34,000 o r jus t a  little  les s  than  tha t, 33,000 n ine  

p lus  will be  m ore  than  sufficien t to  com pensa te  Mr. S im on for h is  pos t 

d ischarge  work, and  we ask you  to  en te r and  recons ider in  do ing  so , 

your th ird  orde r, and   conclude  in  accordance  with  the  d irections  from  

the  Suprem e Court tha t tha t work tha t he  d id  is  worth  no  m ore  than  

$34,000.   

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you , counse l.  Mr. Chris tensen , 

your response . 

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes , Your Honor.  I'm  going  to  firs t 

address  the  Edgeworth 's  m otion , and  then  I' ll addres s  the  

counte rm otion . 

THE COURT:  Okay.   

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  The  d ifficu lty with  the  Edgeworth ' s  

m otion  is  tha t they haven ' t se t fo rth  grounds  for recons ide ra tion .  The  

cla im  tha t the  Court' s  la tes t o rder d id  no t com ply with  the  m andate  , fo r 

exam ple , d idn ' t take  no te  of the  fact tha t there  was  a  Brunze ll ana lys is  
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tha t was  added  in , and  tha t there  were  a lso  additiona l find ings  added  in  

concern ing  the  work tha t S im on d id  to  uphold  the  Court' s  quantum  

m eruit ana lys is .   

There 's  severa l kind  of th row up  on  the  wall is sues  tha t a re  

ra ised  a s  an  a ttem pt to  ga in  recons idera tion .  One  of them  is  tha t they 

say they were  no t p rovided  with  an  opportun ity to  file  a  rep ly.  I po in ted  

out in  the  oppos ition  tha t they d idn ' t m ake  any showing  tha t tha t's  

actua lly a  fundam enta l righ t, tha t they had  a  due  process  righ t to  file  a  

rep ly and , las tly, tha t they d id  no t es tab lish  what the ir a rgum ent would  

have  been .  They d idn ' t p rovide  it.  So  they d id  no t es tab lish  undue  

pre jud ice  and  thereby they cannot ask for recons idera tion . 

The  rep ly is  fa irly te lling , and  it kind  of goes  in  line  with  the  

genera l them e of a ll o f these  recent filings .  They a rgue  tha t they d id  no t 

m ake  a  due  process  a rgum ent, tha t they were  m ere ly s ta ting  a  fact tha t 

they were  denied  the ir, quote , "righ t to  rep ly," and  tha t, quote , "should  

no t have  been  denied  tha t righ t as  a  fact."   

So  they kind  of boo ts trapped  them selves  in to  the ir own re lie f 

by ignoring  the  fact tha t they have  two fa lse  prem ises .  They jus t skip  

over them .  One  is  no  righ t to  rep ly; and , two, is  no  undue  pre jud ice .  At 

m os t, it' s  -- if you  can ' t say what you  would  have  sa id  in  your rep ly tha t 

would  have  changed  the  m ind  of the  Court, then  it' s  [ind iscern ib le  - 

audio /video  frozen].   

So  we  never ge t to  actua lly exam ining  the ir a rgum ents  in  the  

firs t p lace  because  they haven ' t e s tab lished  a  righ t to  recons idera tion .  

But I wou ld  like  to  go  to  them  anyway because , if no th ing  e lse , to  
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support the  Court' s  quantum  m eruit ana lys is .  You know, a t the  ou tse t, 

they' re  prom oting  an  hourly com puta tion  of the  fees  to  S im on.  Tha t's  

no t the  on ly rou te  tha t the  Court can  take .  Under a  quantum  m eruit, it' s  

with in  the  Court' s  d iscre tion  to  use  a  wide  varie ty of m etrics  on  how to  

add  up  the  fee s .  One  of them  is  m arke t ra te .  Anothe r one  is  -- you  know, 

under -- there  a re  a rgum ents  tha t a re  no t well s ta ted  in  the  m oving  

papers  concern ing  contingency fee , fla t fee , a ll o f tha t.  

But we  know from  the  very early case  o f Fracasse  v. Brent, 

which  cam e out o f Californ ia  in  1972, tha t when  a  lawyer is  fired  on  the  

courthouse  s teps  of e ither a  good  resu lt, o r a  good  tria l resu lt, o r a  

judgm ent, o r a  se ttlem ent, tha t the  lawyer is  no t bound by any a rtificia l 

res trictions , the  lawyer ge ts  the  fu ll va lue  of the ir work.  And Nevada  law 

fo llows  righ t a long  from  Fracasse .  Fracasse  has  been  cited  a  num ber of 

tim es . 

So  le t' s  take  a  look a t the  actua l a rgum ents  tha t a re  

subm itted  by the  Edgeworths .  They use  te rm s  like  garden  varie ty.  They 

had  [ind iscern ib le  - audio /video  frozen] 

THE COURT:  Mr. Chris tensen , can  you  hear us?  Because  I'm  

having  d ifficu lty hearing  you  now and  your video  is  gone .   

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I can  hear you . 

THE COURT:  Okay.  We can ' t hea r you , because  now you 're  

on  the  screen , bu t you 're  frozen .   

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I could  ho ld  up  no tes . 

THE COURT:  Can  you  log  out and  log  back in?   

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes , I can .  I will do  tha t. 
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THE COURT:  Okay.  Never m ind , we  can  hear you  now. 

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  Yeah , we  can  hear you  now. 

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I'm  sorry, Your Honor.  You know, m y 

office  is  downtown and  Cox it' s  a  cha llenge  to  us  a ll. 

THE COURT:  I ge t it.  I ge t it.   

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I want to  jus t focus  in  on  one  a rea  tha t 

they com pla in  abou t, kind  of to  rem ove  the  curta in  from  th is  fa llacy of 

the  garden  va rie ty a rgum en t tha t they have . 

So  they go  a ll a round on  when the  Viking  se ttlem ent was  

fina lized , when  the  re lease  was  fina lized .  They m ake  very defin itive  

s ta tem ents  tha t it was  a ll over by the  27th .  As  I po in ted  out in  the  

oppos ition , they ignored  the  Court' s  find ing  of fact num ber 13 on  tha t 

po in t.  In  the  rep ly, they never provided  a  bas is  for how they can  ignore  

tha t find ing  of fact o r ge t a round it.  They s im ply say m ore  of the  sam e.   

So  le t' s  ge t in to  it.  There  was  d iscuss ion , and  som e of it is  

cited  by the  Edgeworths .  For exam ple , on  page  16 of day 4 transcrip t, 

the  Court asked  th is  ques tion .  "And you  got the  m utua l re lease  on  

11/27."  And Mr. S im on rep lied , "Right in  tha t range , yeah ."  So  he  

doesn ' t s ay it was  exactly on  the  27th .  In  fact, he  d iscusses  tha t it was  

before  he  go t the  le tte r o f d irection , wh ich , o f course , d idn ' t com e in to  

h is  o ffice  un til the  30th , and  we  have  a  find ing  of fact on  tha t as  we ll.   

And then  on  page  17 of the  sam e transcrip t, Mr. S im on  

further described  tha t he  went on  over to  J oe l Henriod 's  o ffice  and  

actua lly sa t down with  h im  and  worked  on  the  re lease  and  fin ished  it up .  
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These  fo lks  pu t a  g rea t dea l o f s trength  in  the  super b ill.  If you  take  a  

look a t tha t, the re  it is , there 's  a  Novem ber 30th  en try on  page  75, when  

he  was  -- when  Mr. S im on was  negotia ting  the  re lease  with  Mr. Henriod .  

And there  a re  o ther en tries  th roughout tha t tim e  when they were  

negotia ting  the  re lease , including  the  29th , the  27th .  Tha t was  an  active  

is sue , and  it was  active  a ll the  way through the  30th , which  is  a fte r the  

tim e  he  was  d ischarged . 

So , you  know, these  a re  no t garden  va rie ty item s .  If they' re  

garden  varie ty item s , Mr. Vannah  would  not have  been  so  assertive  in  

the  hearing  be fore  Your Honor when  he  sa id , I don ' t know what's  go ing  

on , and  he  d idn ' t want to  ge t involved  with  the  re lea se .  He  d idn ' t want 

to  s ign  it.  And he  sa id  in  open  court, tha t he  d idn ' t want to  ge t involved .  

And, in  fact, he  sen t an  em a il, which  is  a lso  re fe renced  in  the  Court' s  

find ings  about the  num ber o f hours  tha t it would  take  h im  to  ge t up  to  

speed  in  order to  address  these , what a re  now te rm ed as  garden  varie ty 

item s .   

So  there  was  va lue  added  to  the  case .  This  is  no t s im ple  

hourly b illing  o r e lse  Mr. Vannah  could  have  handled  it.  He 's  an  

im m ense ly qua lified  a tto rney.  If he 's  s aying  he 's  no t ab le  to  handle  it 

without a  whole  lo t o f s tudy, and  work, and  ove r a  week's  tim e  of 

reviewing  the  file  and  ge tting  up  to  speed , then  a ll o f tha t needs  to  be  

taken  in to  cons idera tion  when you  eva lua te  the  va lue  of Mr. S im on 's  

se rvices , assum ing  tha t you  s ta rt the  clock on  Novem ber 29th . 

Moving  on  to  Mr. S im on 's  a rgum en t.  We have  a  lega l 

a rgum en t; we  have  prom oted  tha t lega l a rgum ent befo re .  As  po in ted  
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ou t in  the  rep ly, it appears  to  be  a  cu t and  pas te .  Tha t is  accura te .  Very 

as tu te .  Main ly it is .  Surpris ing ly, a lthough it' s  a  cu t and  pas te , and  

a lthough the  Edgeworths  have  seen  th is  a rgum ent before , they s till don ' t 

pu t up  an  a rgum ent as  to  why the  law cited  in  tha t a rgum ent does  no t 

apply.  As  you  know, Your Honor, our a rgum en t is  tha t once  the  contract 

was  found  as  be ing  d ischarged  tha t then , as  a  m atte r o f law, the  

paym ent te rm  of the  d ischa rged  contract cannot be  en forced .  Tha t's  it.  

S im ply put.   

So  we  say tha t the  quantum  m eruit clock should  s ta rt back in  

Septem ber.  There  is  anothe r unrebutted  decla ra tion  o f Will Kem p 

subm itted , which  is  in  line  w ith  h is  p rio r unrebutted  te s tim ony tha t there  

was  a  trem endous  am ount of va lue  added  to  the  case  from  Septem ber 

forward .  And the  counte ra rgum ent is  go ing  to  be  tha t, we ll, the  

Suprem e Court d idn ' t address  tha t o r doesn ' t a llow tha t type  of an  

ana lys is  in  the ir m andate , and  we d isagree  with  tha t. 

When you  take  a  look -- a  course  g ra ined  look a t the  case  as  a  

whole , you  have  to  include  the  order where  the  pe tition  for writ by Mr. 

S im on was  den ied  as  m oot.  And in  tha t pe tition , S im on sought re lie f 

because  of the  a rgum ent tha t once  the  im plied  in  fact contract was  

d ischarged , tha t it was  im proper to  en force  the  paym ent te rm .   

So  clearly the  Suprem e Court is  s aying  we 're  s ending  it back 

down anyway, so  we  don ' t have  to  address  th is .  We ' re  go ing  to  th row it 

back to  the  Dis trict Court.  Now they can  com e up  with  a  

counte ra rgum ent to  tha t, ce rta in ly, bu t we  have  two com peting  

a rgum en ts  a t th is  tim e , and  they're  bo th  based  upon the  record .  So  tha t 
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ques tion  is  le ft to  th is  Court.  And if the  Court finds  tha t, ye s , we  do  ge t 

to  address  tha t is sue , then  I would  subm it tha t Mr. S im on has  shown the  

lega l bas is  for recons idera tion  because  of the  e rror of law  argum ent.   

Also , on  the  QM argum ent, there  is  one  th ing  to  rem em ber, 

tha t Mr. S im on a lso  increased  the  va lue  of the  Lange  se ttlem ent. There  

was  a  ra ther odd  a rgum ent m ade  tha t because  the  -- in  the  rep ly, tha t 

because  the  se ttlem ent docum ent had  a  Decem ber da te  on  it, tha t clearly 

everyth ing  was  done  back in  Decem ber.  I'm  not sure  how tha t ho lds .  

Even  if the  da te  is  the  sam e , eve ry o ther word , o ther than  the  da te , could  

have  been  changed .  Of course , tha t d idn ' t happen .  Only the  num bers  

changed .  But the  m ere  fact tha t the  da te  preda ted  the  increase  in  va lue , 

it doesn ' t m ean  tha t o ther pa rts  o f the  re lease  does  no t change .  Tha t's  

another unsound a rgum ent. 

Unless  Your Honor has  any ques tions .  Thank you . 

THE COURT:  Thank you , Mr. Chris tensen .  Mr. Morris , any 

rep ly to  what Mr. Chris tensen  jus t a rgued? 

MR. MORRIS:  Yes , Your Honor.  Thank you .  I ju s t want to  

m ake  a  couple  of observa tions  -- well, m ore  than  a  couple , severa l.   

Once  is  tha t your la tes t o rde r, the  th ird  order, which  we 're  

asking  you  to  recons ider and  m odify in  accordance  with  the  Suprem e 

Court's  d irection , is  the  sam e orde r tha t was  before  the  Nevada  Suprem e 

Court.  Your order with  respect to  quantum  m eruit hasn ' t changed  in  the  

sequence  of the  orders  tha t have  been  en te red  in  th is  case  on  tha t 

sub ject.  

So  it isn ' t as  if we  a re  com ing  up  a t the  las t m om ent with  
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som eth ing  in  the  way of an  ana lys is  to  try to  e ffect recons idera tion .  

We 're  a sking  you  to  recons ider th is  o rder on  the  sam e bas is  tha t the  

Nevada  Suprem e Court d irected  you  to  do  so .  And we  don ' t cla im  -- as  

Mr. Chris tensen  e rroneous ly a rgues , we  don ' t cla im  tha t there 's  been  

any den ia l o f due  process .  We don ' t cla im  -- and  we  poin t ou t in  our 

rep ly tha t we  don ' t cla im  tha t the  denia l o f the  righ t to  file  a  rep ly to  the  

second o rder was  reserved  by tha t ju risd iction  and , ce rta in ly, a ffects  us  

here .  We 're  jus t po in ting  out the  h is tory of th is  litiga tion  and  the  fact 

tha t we  should  have  been  -- we  should  have  been  a llowed , and  

particu la rly the  loca l ru le , to  file  a  rep ly.  We have  filed  a  rep ly now.  It' s  

the  rep ly in  support o f recons idera tion  of th is  th ird  order.  

Mr. Chris tensen  a lso  went on  to  say tha t there  a re  o ther 

factors  tha t you  can  cons ider, o the r than  the  hourly ra te  tha t Mr. S im on 

was  pa id  pred ischa rge  for the  work tha t he  d id , and  he  re fe rred  to  

som eth ing  like  the  m arke t ra te .  He  wouldn ' t e labora te  on  tha t.  But the  

m arke t ra te , you  know, is  what Mr. S im on, in  the  firs t ins tance , o ffe red  

h is  super b ill in  support o f.  And I want to  com e back to  tha t super b ill in  

jus t a  m om ent.   

But I wou ld  po in t ou t in  m aking  tha t a rgum ent, Mr. 

Chris tensen  is  flying  in  the  face  or in  the  hea t o f the  Suprem e Court's  

o rder tha t th is  quan tum  m eru it find ing , which  has  been  cons is ten t -- the  

quantum  m eruit po rtion  of your decis ions , which  was  incons is ten t from  

the  da te  of appea l un til today, to  say tha t you  cannot cons ider, which  is  

la rge ly what Mr. Chris tensen  is  a rguing , you  can ' t cons ider in  

es tab lish ing  quantum  m eruit the  work tha t was  done  p red ischarge , and  
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tha t's  our po in t. 

We a lso  po in t ou t, when  he  takes  is sue  with  us  ignoring  

find ing  of fact num ber 13, we  addressed  tha t in  our rep ly.  We poin ted  

out tha t Mr. Chris tensen  m iscited  and  m isquoted  find ing  of fact num ber 

13.  You  d idn ' t say in  tha t find ing  tha t -- anyth ing  about on  or a fte r.  

What you  sa id  was  on  or about, and  we  poin t tha t ou t in  a  foo tnote  in  

our rep ly.  So  it' s  necessary, I th ink, to  correct the  record  on  tha t.   

Mr. Chris tensen 's  a rgum ent tha t Mr. S im on is  en titled  to  

a lm os t $3,000 an  hour for work tha t he  d id  to  close  up  the  file , which  

[ind iscern ib le ] no t I described  as , bu t I' ll adopt tha t descrip tion  as  ga rden  

varie ty clos ing  up  the  file  work.  Tha t $3,000 an  hour -- o r it' s  actua lly 

$2789 an  hour for each  of the  71.1 hours  tha t a re  on  tha t super b ill, tha t 

is  jus t extraord inary.  And cons ider it in  th is  ligh t, Your Honor.  If Mr. 

S im on had  not been  fired , h is  com pensa tion  would  have  been  -- would  

have  been  es tab lished  as  you  d id  with  respect to , tha t he  was  owed 

pred ischarge  -- h is  work pos t d ischarge , o r if he  hadn ' t been  fired , h is  

work wou ld  be  to  the  end  of h is  tim e , would  have  been  on  an  hourly 

bas is . 

So  to  ge t in to  tha t hourly bas is , wh ich  Brunze ll says  you  can  

cons ider.  It doesn ' t say you  d is regard  it and  throw it ou t the  window 

when the  lawyer is  te rm ina ted , bu t had  he  no t been  fired  h is  

com pensa tion  would  be  exactly as  we  ask you  to  award , and  tha t is  no t 

m ore  than  $34,000, which  we  put in  our papers . 

I want to  po in t ou t another th ing  tha t Mr. Chris tensen  sa id  

tha t is  contra ry to  Mr. S im on 's  tes tim ony to  you , and  especia lly in  
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response  to  a  ques tion  you  asked  h im .  You asked  h im  if negotia tions  

have  been  com ple ted  before  -- be fore  he  sa t down to  write  h is  

Novem ber 27th  le tte r to  Edgeworth  -- to  the  Edgeworths  saying  tha t he  

wanted  severa l m illion  dolla rs  m ore  than  he  had  agreed  to  take  

previous ly.  And he  sa id  tha t negotia tions  on  the  27th , when  he  wrote  

tha t le tte r to  the  Edgeworths , were  com ple te  before  he  knew tha t he  -- 

tha t Vannah  had  been  h ired . 

So  I th ink tha t is  -- pardon  m e? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  And before  he  wrote  the  le tte r. 

MR. MORRIS:  And before  he  wrote  the  le tte r.  Yes , before  he  

wrote  the  le tte r and  he  knew tha t Vannah  had  been  d ischa rged , he  had  

com ple ted  negotia tions .   

He  announced  the  end  resu lt on  Novem ber 30th , bu t he  a lso  

es tab lished  tha t the  end  resu lt had  a lready been  negotia ted .  And you  

m ade  a  find ing  tha t the  Edgeworth ' s  s igned  the  consent to  se ttle  the  

Lange  case  on  Decem ber the  7th .  Tha t wasn ' t consequence  of any work 

tha t Mr. S im on was  do ing  du ring  tha t tim e .   

This  brings  us  to , I th ink, one  of the  m os t im portan t pa rts  o f 

th is  m otion  practice  and  a ll o f th is  is  included  in  our papers  as  exhib its .  

And aga in  I would  like  to  re fe r you  to  Exhib it LL in  support o f the  

principa l m otion .  If you  look a t tha t, tha t' s  excerp ts  from  Mr. S im on 's  

super b ill.  And  here  is  the  characte r o f the  work tha t he  sa id  he  was  

do ing  on  and  a fte r he  was  d ischa rged .  He  dra fted  and  sen t an  em a il.  He  

reviewed and  ana lyzed  Lange 's  supplem enta l b rie f.  He  go t an  em a il 

from  h is  clien t.  He  dra fted  a  le tte r to  Teddy Pa rker.  He  reviewed a  
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re lease .  He  ca lled  Teddy Parker.  He  ca lled  som eone  tha t he  re fe rs  to  a s  

ANF.  He  looked  a t a  b ill.  He  negotia ted  a  re lease  with  Mr. Henriod  on  

Novem ber the  30th , for th ree-and-a-ha lf hours .  He  had  a  conversa tion  

with  Mr. Green .   

He 's  trying  to  ge t -- he 's  trying  to  e s tab lish  tha t he  was  do ing  

subs tan tive  work on  and  a fte r the  da te  he  was  d ischa rged , bu t the  super 

b ill s im ply does  no t support it, and  tha t's  the  on ly record , Your Honor, 

tha t we  have  of what he  d id  do  du ring  th is  tim e  period . 

So  we  would  say if you  look a t th is  tes tim ony tha t ties  the  

contract negotia tions  tha t he  was  be ing  com pensa ted  before  he  wrote  to  

the  Edgeworths , tha t trends  down the  contract negotia tions  with  respect 

to  Lange  and  Viking  as  have  been  subs tan tive ly com ple ted  as  of 

Novem ber the  27th .   

So , in  sum , what we  have  here  is  dancing  be tween  the  

ra indrops  in  an  e ffo rt to  escape  what in  fact Mr. S im on has  tes tified  to  

and  what h is  super b ill shows  tha t he  actua lly d id .  He  put in  som e non-

subs tan tive  ga rden  varie ty hours  to  close  ou t h is  file  and  h is  

represen ta tion  of the  Edgeworths , and  tha t to ta ls  71.10 hours .   

Mr. Chris tensen  a lso  ra ised  the  po in t tha t jus t s im ply -- it 

de fies  ra tiona l ana lys is , and  tha t is  the  Suprem e Court's  den ia l o f Mr. 

S im on 's  writ pe tition .  He  seem ed  to  overturn  the  Court' s  de te rm ina tion  

tha t he  was  en titled  to  $200,000 in  quantum  m eruit com pensa tion  and  

tha t o rde r s im ply says , as  well as  the  Suprem e Court en te red , denying  

writ pe tition .  We reviewed the  order in  a  d irect appea l in  docke t num ber 

77678 where  they vaca ted  the  quantum  m eruit award  and  rem anded  it 
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for furthe r proceedings .   

Your Honor, those  further proceed ings  a re  th is  p roceeding . 

We are  now addres s ing  tha t and  tha t is  p recise ly what the  Suprem e 

Court asked  to  be  done  in  its  decis ion  tha t it en te red  on  Decem ber the  

30th , saying  tha t a lthough there  is  evidence  in  the  record  tha t S im on and  

h is  associa te  perform ed work a fte r the  cons tructive  d ischa rge , the  

Dis trict Court d id  no t expla in  how it views  tha t evidence  to  ca lcu la te  its  

award .  Thus , it was  unclear whether the  $200,000 was  a  reasonable  

am ount to  award  fo r the  work done  a fte r cons tructive  d ischarge .  Tha t's  

no t for the  work tha t was  done  prio r to , as  Mr. Chris tensen  likes  to  

ana logize  it, to  be ing  fired  on  the  courthouse  s teps .  And the  case  then  

goes  ahead , apparen tly, in  court. 

But the  po in t is  tha t Mr. S im on was  fired  a fte r the  

subs tan tive  negotia tions  and  agreem en ts  for se ttling  the  Viking , in  

particu la r, and  the  Lange  cla im s  were  com ple ted , and  he  was  

com pensa ted  for tha t.  You 've  com pensa ted  h im  for tha t.  We d idn ' t 

appea l tha t.  What we  appea led  was , and  what the  Suprem e Court sen t 

th is  back for, was  the  $200,000 in  quantum  m eruit.   

And our po in t is , and  as  we  poin t ou t in  our -- in  the  opening  

page  of our rep ly in  th is  particu la r p roceeding  is  we 're  here  on  a  very 

lim ited  bas is .  We 're  here  on ly fo r the  purpose  of es tab lish ing  wha t 

would  be  reasonable , if it can  be  jus tified  as  rea sonab le , the  $200,000 

tha t you  awarded  Mr. S im on in  quantum  m eruit.  And  as  we  poin t ou t, 

when  you  exam ine  the  reco rd  of what he  d id , tha t the  Suprem e Court 

re fe rred  to , we  see  tha t Mr. Chris tensen  describes  as  garden  varie ty work 
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the  71.1 hours  and  $2700 -- $2789 pe r hour for each  one  o f those  71 

hours .  

We say tha t's  unreasonable .  We say tha t ignores  wha t 

Brunze ll sa id  and  o ther cases  have  sa id  s ince  then .  Hourly ra tes  to  the  

po in t o f d ischarge  can  be  cons idered , bu t they' re  no t exclus ive .  You can  

cons ider o ther facto rs  too .  And when you  cons ider those  o ther factors , 

you 've  go t to  take  in to  cons idera tion  what it is  tha t the  advoca te  

apparen tly d id  during  the  pos t d ischarge  period .   

We 've  covered  tha t with  you  in  Exh ib it LL tha t describes  a ll 

o f the  work Mr. S im on and  h is  associa te , Ms . Ferre l d id , and  we  have  

concluded , and  we ask you  to  accept our conclus ion  tha t Mr. S im on is  

en titled  to , a t m os t -- we  don ' t th ink he ' s  en titled  to  $34,000, bu t we  

unders tand  tha t you  have  som e d iscre tion  here , tha t you  have  to  ask 

yourse lf tha t d iscre tion  on  the  bas is  o f a  record  before  you .  And we  

show tha t the  record  before  you  ju s t s im ply will no t support as  the  

Suprem e Court, asked  you  to  [ind iscern ib le ] anyth ing  m ore  than  $34,000 

for the  work Mr. S im on and  h is  as socia te  d id  pos t d ischarge .  Thank you  

for lis ten ing  to  m e.   

THE COURT:  Thank you  very m uch. 

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Your Honor, m ay I have  one  m inute  in  

rep ly to  of m otion? 

THE COURT:  No, Mr. Chris tensen .  We have  litiga ted  th is  

case  for the  la s t fou r years .  I have  heard  everyth ing  under the  sun  about 

th is  case .  I have  read  everyth ing  tha t you  guys  have  filed  for four years .  

I am  going  to  is sue  a  m inute  order on  th is  decis ion .   
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Moving  on  to  the  second m otion .  The  second m otion  is  the  

m otion  for an  order re leas ing  the  clien t funds  and  requ iring  the  

production  of the  com ple te  clien t files .  I have  read  the  m otion .  Mr. 

Chris tensen , you  d id  cover th is  in  your oppos ition .  In  your one  

docum ent, you  d id  cover your oppos ition  to  bo th  of these  m otions .  And 

I have  a lso  read  the  rep ly.  

Mr. Morris , I have  read  everyth ing , and  I am  ve ry we ll aware  

of what's  go ing  on  with  the  funds  in  th is  case .  My ques tion  in  regards  to  

th is  is , if th is  Court were  to  deny your m otion  to  recons ider, and  you  

appea l th is  decis ion , what is  your pos ition  as  to  what tha t would  do  to  

the  funds  and  why should  they be  re leased  before  the  appea l? 

MR. MORRIS:  I th ink we  can  find  the  answer to  tha t in  

Nelson  v. Hee r, which  is  121 Nev. 832, a  2005 case , which  says  tha t 

S im on is  on ly en titled  to  security for the  judgm ent tha t you  en te r in  h is  

favor tha t we  m ight appea l.   

And, Your Honor, I would  say tha t ho ld ing  $1,970,000 to  

secure  a  judgm ent of less  than  400,000 -- $500,000 a ltoge ther, if you  

denied  our m otion , would  be  unreasonable .  And tha t m eans , I th ink, tha t 

7055 s till applies .  The  Court sa id  in  Nelson  v. Heer tha t -- pardon? 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  In  Morse . 

MR. MORRIS:  I'm  sorry, Morse .  In  the  Morse  case , tha t a ll 

tha t S im on is  en titled  to  is  adequa te  security for the  judgm ent tha t is  

be ing  appea led .  And if your judgm ent is  the  $200,000 tha t you 're  go ing  

to  s tick with , when  you  add  tha t to  wha t has  a lready been  ad judica ted , 

and  tha t' s  the  m axim um  am ount tha t he  is  en titled  to , and  tha t sa tis fies  
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the  requirem ents  of 7.055 and  requires  h im  -- 

THE COURT:  Mr. Morris , jus t one  second. 

MR. MORRIS:  -- to  tu rn  ove r the  funds . 

THE COURT:  Mr. Morris , jus t one  second.  I need  everybody 

on  BlueJ eans  to  m ute  your m icrophones .  Okay.  Go ahead , Mr. Morris . 

MR. MORRIS:  I'm  sorry. 

THE COURT:  And I'm  sorry, Mr. Morris , I had  to  cu t you  -- 

MR. MORRIS:  I d idn ' t ca tch  your las t rem ark.   

THE COURT:  Yeah , I had  to  cu t you  off because  I was  ge tting  

a  lo t o f o ther feedback tha t wasn ' t you .   

MR. MORRIS:  Oh, oh , okay.   

THE COURT:  So , go  ahead . 

MR. MORRIS:  Well, if it was  feedback from  m e, I hope  it was  

persuas ive .   

In  any event, Your Honor, we  poin t ou t tha t tha t s ta tu te , 

toge ther with  security, tha t is  re ta ined  for Mr. S im on, supports  the  

tu rnover of the  com ple te  file  to  the  Edgeworths  as  they've  asked .  

Rem em ber the re  is  s till o the r litiga tion  pending  here  tha t is  no t before  

you  tha t m ight have  re levance  to , and  we would  be  en titled  to  exam ine  

the  files  to  dea l with  tha t o r to  address  the  is sues  in  the  o ther case . 

Your Honor, we  poin t ou t, and  I know Mr. Chris tensen  to ils  

with  th is  and  says  he 's  p roduced  everyth ing  tha t we 're  en titled  to , bu t 

the  file  we  rece ived , as  we  poin t ou t on  page  4 of our m otion , if you  take  

a  look a t Exhib it I -- 

THE COURT:  And, Mr. Morris .  
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MR. MORRIS:  -- to  subs tan tia te  th is . 

THE COURT:  Mr. Morris .  Mr. Morris , I ha te  to  cu t you  off, 

bu t I have  read  eve ry s ing le  page  of every s ing le  th ing  tha t you  have  

subm itted .  

MR. MORRIS:  Okay. 

THE COURT:  So  can  we address  is sues  tha t I don ' t know 

about from  reading  a ll o f your brie fing  ins tead  of jus t go ing  over 

everyth ing  tha t you  wrote , because  I've  read  it.  I've  spent hours  

prepping  for th is  hearing  and  read ing  everyth ing  tha t you  guys  

subm itted .   

MR. MORRIS:  Okay.  I guess , the  bes t we  could  say here  is  if 

you 've  read  everyth ing  -- 

THE COURT:  I have . 

MR. MORRIS: -- is  tha t, you  know, we 're  no t -- we 're  no t 

seeking  docum ents  tha t a re  proprie ty to  Viking  and  Lange .  We 're  

seeking  em ails  to  and  from  Viking  and  Lange  tha t a re  no t p roprie ta ry to  

them .  We 're  s eeking  inform a tion  with  respect to  com m unica tions  with  

th ird  parties .  We 're  seeking  com m unica tions  with  respect to  the  experts , 

and  the  reports  tha t they filed , and  the  research  m em os , and  the  search  

tha t was  done  by Mr. S im on, tha t's  in  h is  file  o r should  be  in  h is  file , and  

tha t's  what we ' re  -- tha t' s  rea lly the  subs tance  of what we 're  a fte r.   

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. MORRIS:  So  in  the  m otion  to  re lea se  funds  and  produce  

the  files  tha t were  a lso  re fe rred  to , and  you 've  a lready poin ted  out 

you 've  read  everyth ing , I won ' t be labor it, bu t Mr. S im on is  en titled  to  a ll 
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uncontes ted  am oun ts , and  he 's  en titled  to  adequa te  security.  So  tha t's  

a ll he 's  en titled  to .  He 's  no t en titled  to  keep  our file .  He 's  no t en titled  to  

tie  up  a lm os t $2 m illion  in  funds  to  a  judgm ent tha t he  says  tha t cou ld  be  

en te red  -- a ffirm ed on  appea l for less  than  -- fo r about $535,000, when  

you  put everyth ing  toge ther.  Tha t' s  including  the  52,520 tha t was  

subm itted  to  you  in  an  orde r, and  you  s igned  the  day before  yes te rday, 

p lus  the  $284,000 tha t you  awarded  pred ischarge .  So  tha t's  our po in t. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Thank you  ve ry m uch.  Mr. Chris tensen , 

your response .  And I would  a lso  rem ind  you  I have  read  everyth ing  tha t 

was  subm itted  in  th is  case .   

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  I unders tand , Your Honor.  I' ll try to  

keep  it short.  There  a re  th ree  d iffe ren t is sues  tha t were  ra ised , and  I 

th ink we 've  confused  som e o f them .   

One , the  rep ly d id  no t respond to  the  oppos ition  on  the  

d is tribu tion  of the  m oney.  I th ink your ques tion  a t the  beg inning  was  

very ap t, and  I a lso  th ink it h igh ligh ted  a  problem .  This  m otion  is  

p rem atu re .  When the  Court is sues  its  o rder, if the  Court reeva lua tes  and  

awards  a  la rger QM num ber from  Septem ber, as  we 've  asked , then  

tha t's  one  answer.  Tha t's  one  se t we ' ll have  to  look a t.  If the  Court 

d rives  the  num ber down and  provides  reasons , tha t p rovides  us  with  

som eth ing  e lse  to  look a t.  If the  Court leaves  the  num bers  the  way they 

a re , tha t g ives  us  a  th ird  th ing  to  look a t. 

All o f those  m ay lead  to  d iffe ren t answers  on  what's  go ing  to  

happen  with  the  m oney he ld  in  trus t.  You cannot pre judge  tha t.  I don ' t 

know why they filed  th is  m otion  prem ature ly.  They d idn ' t rep ly in  
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support o f the ir m o tion  to  d isburse  fund  in  the ir rep ly.  I had  assum ed 

they had  dropped  tha t, unders tanding  tha t the  m otion  was  prem atu re .  

Apparen tly no t.  Bu t th is  is sue  is  p rem a ture .  Le t's  wa it and  see  what the  

Court does , then  we  address  it.  Tha t's  the  norm al way th ings  proceed . 

There  was  a  reques t to  transfe r funds .  We d id  tha t.  We 

d idn ' t do  it as  qu ickly as  they wanted .  They filed  a  m otion  a fte r on ly ten  

days  without a llowing  for the  fact tha t som e fo lks  a re  busy, and  som e 

fo lks  a re  ou t o f town, and  working , and  we  had  to  look a t it.  We had  to  

ge t an  okay from  them .  And  in  so  do ing , in  filing  tha t m otion , they sa id  

som e pre tty nas ty th ings .   

You know, Mr. Vannah  cam e up  with  the  idea  of pu tting  the  

m oney in  Bank of Am erica , and  we  agreed , and  I don ' t know why tha t's  

such  a  huge  problem  now.  You 're  jus t ta lking  about where  the  m oney is .  

If it' s  over in  Bank o f Am erica , they m ake  in te re s t.  If it' s  over in  the  S teve  

Morris  trus t accoun t, then  they don ' t ge t in te re s t.  Tha t's  about the  on ly 

d iffe rence . 

THE COURT:  And isn ' t the  in te res t -- and  to  m y reco llection  

when th is  happened  in  2018, isn ' t the  in te res t go ing  to  the  Edgeworths? 

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Yes . 

THE COURT:  Okay. 

MR. CHRISTENSEN:  They're  m aking  in te res t on  the ir m oney 

and  on  whatever m oney is  eventua lly awarded  and  pa id  to  Mr. S im on.  

So  they' re  -- so , whatever.  We 've  agreed  to  it.  We d idn ' t have  a  

problem  with  it.  We jus t d idn ' t do  it a t the  speed  tha t they wanted , 

a lthough they d idn ' t rea lly have  a  bas is  to  ask fo r it, bu t tha t's  another 

P000415



 

23 
Maukele  Transcribers , LLC, Em ail: m aukele@hawaii.rr.com  / Tel: (808)298-8633 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

 

is sue , and  I th ink tha t is sue  is  m oot.   

So  le t' s  go  to  tu rn ing  over the  file .  You  know -- I'm  sorry, I'm  

going  to  have  to  go  back to  the  d is tribu tion  m oney.  In  addition  to  it 

be ing  prem atu re , you  know, th is  is  the  firs t tim e  they cited  Nelson  v. 

Heer.  I jus t looked  through the ir papers .  It' s  no t in  there .  I would  need  a  

chance  to  review the  case .  The  las t tim e  I read  it was  years  ago .  And 

they m ight be  righ t, bu t you  know som eth ing , the  tim e  to  ra ise  tha t 

a rgum en t is  a fte r th is  Court is sues  its  o rder.   

Turn ing  over the  file .  So  on  its  face , 7.055 does  no t apply.  

Mr. S im on has  no t been  pa id  ye t.  I unders tand  the ir security a rgum ent, 

bu t tha t's  no t what the  s ta tu te  says .  So  we  don ' t have  a  genera l 

ob jection  to  tu rn  over parts  o f the  file  tha t they can  have , bu t there  is  an  

NDA, Section  13 of the  NDA does  s ta te  tha t the  NDA continues  to  exis t 

and  be  enforced  a fte r se ttlem ent of the  underlying  case .  Section  13 does  

s ta te  tha t a rch iva l copies  tha t a re  he ld  in  counse l's  file  like  expert 

reports , e t ce te ra , e t ce te ra , tha t include  confidentia l in form ation , which  

these  expert reports  do , a re  confidentia l under the  NDA and  continue  to  

do  so .   

You know, here 's  the  problem .  Mr. S im on s igned  the  NDA.  

If som eth ing  happens  to  tha t confidentia l in form ation  tha t Viking  or 

Lange  d isagree  with , he 's  the  one  who 's  go ing  to  be  le ft ho ld ing  the  bag .  

And you  can ' t jus t ignore  it and  say, oh , we  don ' t want proprie ta ry 

docum ents , bu t we  do  want the  expert reports  tha t conta in  proprie ta ry 

docum ents , and  com m ent on  the  p roprie ta ry docum ents , and  

incorpora te  them  in to  the  reports .  It doesn ' t work tha t way.  There ' s  -- 
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the  NDA has  to  be  addressed .   

So  there 's  two th ings  tha t have  to  happen .  One , they've  go t 

to  s ign  Exhib it A; and , num ber two, they have  to  es tab lish  under the  

NDA why they have  a  curren t need  for the  docum ents .  Now if they have  

a  curren t need  for the  docum ents  in  the  o ther su it, then  bring  th is  m otion  

in  the  o ther su it.   

I want to  go  to  the  security a rgum ent.  Here 's  the  problem  

with  tha t.  Morse  is  a  1948 case .   Fig liuzzi was  in  the  '90s .  Both  of them  

preda te  the  change  to  our s ta tu te , 18.015 in  2013.  In  2013, the  lega l 

landscape  changed .  The  s ta tu te  changed .  Morse  dea lt with  a  case  

where  there  was  an  ongoing  underlying  case  and  where  the  clien t could  

es tab lish  pre jud ice  if they d idn ' t have  access  to  the  file .  And the  

Suprem e Court sa id , yeah , as  long  as  the  Dis trict Court se ts  som e so rt o f 

reasonable  security, then  you  can  turn  the  file  over, because  a t tha t tim e  

in  Nevada  a  re ta in ing  lien  was  a  com m on law rem edy.  It wasn ' t 

s ta tu tory and  the  sam e th ing  in  Fig liuzzi. 

And in  Morse , in  fact, they even  d is tinguished  the  d iffe rence  

be tween  a  s ta tu tory charg ing  lien  and  a  re ta in ing  lien  and  sa id , you  

know, the  Court' s  go t a  lo t m ore  d iscre tion  with  a  com m on law re ta in ing  

lien  than  it does  with  a  s ta tu tory charg ing  lien .  So  le t' s  fas t fo rward . 

In  2013, they added  in  language  about the  re ta in ing  lien .  It' s  

in  18.015(1)(b ).  And, Your Honor, I apologize , I would  have  ra ised  th is  in  

the  oppos ition ,  bu t th is  a rgum ent was  brought up  in  the  rep ly, so  I 

apologize  for tha t.   

So  now we have  a  s ta tu tory re ta in ing  lien .  And subsection  3 
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says  -- I'm  sorry, hang  on .  Here  we  go .  Subsection  4(b), the  lien  

a ttaches  to  any file  o r o ther prope rty le ft in  the  posses s ion  of the  

a tto rney, including , without lim ita tion , copies  of the  a tto rney's  file  -- and  

it goes  on  -- and  au thorizes  the  a tto rney to  re ta in  any such  file  o r 

p roperty un til such  tim e  as  an  ad judica tion  is  m ade  pu rsuant to  

Subsection  6.  Tha t' s  the  lien  ad judica tion , which  we 're  s till here  figh ting  

over. 

So , aga in , the ir m otion  is  p rem ature .  Morse  and  Fig liuzzi no  

longer apply.  The  s ta tu te  changed .  You know, if they had  ra ised  tha t in  

the ir in itia l p lead ing , I could  have  gone  a  little  b it m ore  in  depth  in  tha t, 

and  we  could  have  addressed  it a  little  b it m ore  thoroughly.  I apologize  

for do ing  it during  ora l a rgum ent, bu t they ra ised  it in  the  rep ly.   

So  tha t's  the  s itua tion .  We have  a  problem  here  with  tha t 

NDA, and  they're  no t willing  to  addres s  it.  Even  in  Morse , the  Suprem e 

Court sa id  tha t they could  re ta in  confidentia l co rrespondence  in  tha t case  

back in  1948.  Here  we  have  a  written , enforceable  NDA tha t we  have  to  

dea l with .   

We a lso  have  to  dea l with  the  practica l ques tion  of -- you  

know, these  fo lks  ra ise  the  is sue , and  they say a ll th is  s tu ff is  

indecipherab le , it' s  vague , bu t they don ' t te ll us  why.  So  how do  we  

address  tha t p roblem ?  Is  it a  particu la r file?  Is  it a  fo lder?  Is  it the  

p lead ing?  Is  it correspondence?  What is  it?  What do  we  have  to  

reproduce?  They won ' t te ll u s .  They a llege  the re 's  a  p roblem , bu t they 

won ' t te ll us  what it is , and  then  they te ll us  to  fix it.  I don ' t know how to  

react to  tha t, o ther than  producing  the  file  aga in  in  to to , wh ich  we  
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shouldn ' t have  to  do .  We a lready gave  them  the  file  once .  How m any 

tim es  do  they need  it? 

So  there 's  p ractica l is sues , which  they're  jus t overlooking .  

The  ru le  does  no t m ake  an  a tto rney p roduce  a  file  m ore  than  once .  The  

ru le  does  no t m ake  an  a tto rney ignore  a  b ind ing  NDA.  And the  ru le  does  

no t m ake  an  a tto rney produce  the  sam e parts  o f a  file  m ore  than  once .  

They haven ' t p roduced  any law on  any of those  is sues .  So  we 're  willing  

to  coopera te , bu t there  a re  som e  practica l is sues  here  tha t have  to  be  

addressed , and  I don ' t th ink the  Edgeworths  have  g iven  th is  Court 

enough inform a tion  to  ru le  on  th is , if in  fact 7.055 applied  ye t, which  it 

does  no t as  Mr. S im on has  no t ye t been  pa id  under the  s ta tu te .  Thank 

you , Your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you , Mr. Chris tensen .  Mr. Morris , your 

response? 

MR. MORRIS:  Your Honor, in  2013, the  leg is la ture  d id  no t 

am end 7.055 to  ove rru le  e ither Morse  o r Fig liuzzi, as  Mr. Chris tensen  

sugges ts .  Tha t' s  ju s t fa lse .  They' re  s till -- a ll Mr. S im on is  en titled  to  -- 

o f course , he 's  en titled  to  ge t pa id , bu t we  a re  d isputing  what tha t 

am ount is .  And  if we 're  d isputing  what tha t am ount is , he  is  secured  fo r 

the  am ount tha t he  th inks  should  be  pa id , tha t' s  sufficien t.  Tha t's  a ll the  

s ta tu te  require s  to  require  h im  to  obey 7.055 and  turn  over h is  files . 

Mr. Chris tensen  sa id  a  m om ent ago  tha t there ' s  an  NDA 

here , and  he  m ade  quite  a  b it to  do  about tha t.  I po in t ou t, as  we  have  in  

our pape rs , you 've  read  them , tha t we ' re  bound  by tha t NDA a lso .  I a lso  

po in t ou t, as  we  a lso  pu t in  our papers  tha t we  thought we  had  agreed  
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with  S im on and  Mr. Chris tensen  tha t any confidentia l docum ents  would  

be  excluded  from  the  production  tha t we  rece ived  and  would  be  

depos ited  with  the  Court and  scheduled  on  [ind iscern ib le ] so  we  can  

appropria te ly cha llenge  those .   

He  doesn ' t add ress  tha t, and  I can  unde rs tand  why, because  

tha t's  som eth ing  tha t would  require  a  little  b it m ore  work than  what they 

d id  in  producing  what it is  tha t we  have  and  tha t was  rea lly by hard  

drive .  It wasn ' t on  a  thum b drive , and  it wasn ' t in  a  banke r's  box tha t 

was  indexed .  We got a  hard  drive  from  them  of docum ents .  Whether he  

wants  to  describe  those  as  a rch ived  or no t, we  got a  hard  drive  with  tens  

of thousands  of docum ents  on  it, d isorganized , no  guide  pos t to  what's  

in  there , and  m any of them  -- and  m uch of what we  go t from  them  was  

indecipherab le .   

I know he  doesn ' t have  to  p roduce  docum ents  m ore  than  one  

tim e , bu t he  has  to  produce  docum ents  and  turn  over tha t file  tha t a re  

com prehens ib le  and  tha t have  been  filed  in  the  order in  which  they were  

rece ived  or s en t, and  he  has  no t done  tha t.   

And with  respect to  the  po in t tha t he 's  jus t baffled  by what it 

is  tha t we  wanted  to  -- when  we  say they're  short, we  know from  what 

we  rece ived  and  what we  negotia ted  with  h im  tha t we  have  not rece ived  

what we ' re  en titled  to  and  tha t is  the  com ple te  clien t's  file  o f Mr. S im on 

in  a  com prehens ib le  and  unders tandab le  form at.   

We a lso  know tha t the  -- we 've  asked  and  have  been  turned  

down, or we 've  been  ignored  -- Mr. Chris tensen  doesn ' t ra ise  th is  po in t 

about we ll te ll us  what it is  tha t we  have  withhe ld  so  we  can  then  dea l 
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with  it.  In  po in t o f fact, we  d id  tha t.  We wrote  an  em ail to  h im  earlie r 

th is  m onth , and  we poin ted  out on  May the  11th , tha t -- what it is  tha t -- 

what it is  -- and  we put tha t in  our rep ly too , wha t it is  tha t is  m iss ing  

from  the  files  tha t were  produced , o r if they were  included  in  the  hard  

drive , they' re  no t decipherab le  to  us .  We jus t can ' t m ake  tha t 

de te rm ina tion .   

So  we 've  done  as  m uch with  respect to  te lling  h im  what 

we 're  en titled  to , a lthough we shouldn ' t have  to  do  tha t.  They should  

s im ply have  to  tu rn  over the  file , and  if they be lieve  tha t the re  a re  item s  

in  there  tha t rise  to  the  leve l o f p rivilege  from  disclosu re  under the  NDA, 

then  they should  tender those  with  a  p rivilege  log  to  the  Court, so  tha t 

we  can  cha llenge  those  withhold ings  and  address  it appropria te ly with  

you .   

Tha t's  es sen tia lly what I have  to  say, Your Honor, and  I th ink 

tha t tha t will conclude  our [ind isce rn ib le ] on  you  having  to  read  and  vis it 

these  is sues  so  m any tim es . 

THE COURT:  Okay.  Well, I do  need  to  m ake  a  decis ion  in  

regard  to  the  o ther m otion  before  I can  address  th is  m otion , so  when  I 

pu t ou t the  m inute  order on  the  o ther m otion , I will pu t ou t a  m inu te  

order on  th is  m otion  as  well.   

Thank you , counse l.  

///// 

///// 

///// 

///// 
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MR. CHRISTENSEN:  Thank you , Your Honor. 

MR. MORRIS:  Thank you . 

[Proceed ings  concluded  a t 10:23 a .m .] 
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